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Profile
EFG Private Bank Limited

EFG Private Bank Limited (the “Company” or “EFGIUK")
provides banking, stockbroking, wealth management and
investment advisory services for private clients and their
corporate interests. The Company is active in the money
markets in both deposit taking and lending, as well as
transactions in securities, off-Balance Sheet instruments
and derivatives; primarily on behalf of clients.

The Company has wholly owned subsidiaries in Guernsey,
EFG Private Bank (Channel Islands) Limited {"EFGIG™) and
Cyprus, EFG Cyprus Ltd (established during 2020), as well as
a branch in Jersey. All of these entities provide similar
services to those of the Company.

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption
afforded by Section 401 of the Companies Act 2006 in not
preparing consolidated Financial Statements.

Immediate parent company

_ The Company’s immediate parent company is EFG
International AG {"EFGI"), a company incorporated in
Switzerland and listed on the SIX Swiss Exchange, into which
the Company’s results are consolidated (website:

www.efginternational.com).

Highlights
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
GBP m GBPm
Operating and Investing 116 12
Income :
Profit before tax 1 17
Loans and advances to 2,178 1785 |
customers I
A __ - J
Due to customers 3,015 2599
Total equity 148 1927
L e
Total assets 3915 3,505
Assets under management 16,530 14,932 ]
{"AUM") |

Company information

Directors

| Reed - Chairman

R Thomas - Chief Executive

H Price

E Barnett .

A Cooke-Yarborough (Resigned 10 December 2020)
D Politis

G Pradelli

S Robertson*

A Simmonds

* Director of EFGI

Company secretary
A Evans

Independent auditors
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Registered office
Leconfield House
Curzon Street

London

W1} 5)B

website: www.efgl.com

Registered number
231802
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Business review

EFGIUK generated a net profit for the year of GBP 11.2 miltion (2019:
GBP 12.0 millicn), as a result of lower net interest income of GBP 41.6
mitlicn (2019: GBP 50.0 million} driven by the challenging interest
rate environment. This was almost entirely offset by growth in fee
and commission income to GBP 56.1 million (2019: GBP 43.9 million}
and the reduction in tax costs from a tax charege of GBP 4.9 million in
the previous year tc a credit of GBP 0.7 million. No dividend was
declared in respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2020
(2019: nil).

The solid financial performance, together with strong net new assets
of £1.15 billion, was generated despite the huge impact of the COVID-
19 pandemic on the UK and the global economy. EFGIUK operated
effectively throughout this period, with contingency actions ensuring
no significant disruption to the ability to provide services to clients.
We were abte to transition our staff to work from home very quickly
as well as develop and implement digital solutions to facilitate
remate connections with clients. Further details of the impact the
crisis had on the Coempany's key risks is highlighted in the
paragraphs below cn credit, employees and capital & funding.

A key component of EFGI's strategic plan, developed in 2019, was to
sharpen our global footprint by operating out of a smalter number
of centres of excellence offering a full-service private banking
experience and wider access to the EFGI range of products and
digital services. To further this, during 2020 discussions commenced
with the Guernsey Financial Services Commission regarding the
closure of our Guernsey bank, EFGIG. EFGIG clients have been offered
a range of alternative banking locations within the EFGI group,
including the transfer to EFGIUK. These client transfers are expected
to complete during 2021,

During 2020 EFGIUK developed a comprehensive Brexit strategy with
the goal of minimising disruption to its European Economic Area
(‘EEA) clients in the event of a 'No Deal' Brexit. The Company began
implementation of its strategy in advance of the end of the Brexit
transition period beginning on 31 December 2020. The Company
continues to monitor developments and is well positioned to react
as necessary to any updates in the regulatory landscape.

As part of its Brexit strategy, EFGIUK obtained a Cyprus Investment
Firm licence (no. 393/20) from the Cyprus Securities and Exchange
Commission to operate a new subsidiary, EFG Cyprus Limited, in
Cyprus with business activities beginaing in 2021,

Financial performance

The Company saw very stiong demand for lending in prime central
London in 2020, This resulted inthe toan bock growth of 22% to GBP
2,178.3 million {2019: GBP 1,784.5 million) during the year.

The reduction ia net interest income of 17% to GBP 41.6 million (2019
GBP 50.0 mitlion}, was driver: by interest rates fatling to historic tows
tn 2020. The reduction is driven largely by lower interest income
from our investrment securities, with the decrease in interest income
from our lending activities largely offset by the corresponding
impact on interest due te customers and the growth in our loan
book. Net fee and commission income increased by 28% (2019: 3%
increase), due to a reallocation of intragroup fees. As a result,

operating income increased by 4% to GBP 116.4 miltion (2019; GBP
1121 million).

Operating expenses increased by 12% (2019: 9%) to GBP 106.1 miilion
(2019: GBP 94.5 million}), principally due to an increase in staff costs,
following the hiring of new Client Relationship Officers {“CROs") in
2019 and 2020, and in other administrative expenses which resulted
from costs incurred with the upcoming closure of EFGIG. As a result,
the cost income ratio declined to 1% (2019: 84%,).

The reduction in credit impairment provisions resulted in a gain of

. GBP 0.5 millien (2019: charge of GBP 0.7 miltion). This is due to the

settlement of a number of watchlist cases in 2020, with no loss to
the Bank, and higher levels of collateral held against tending.

Key financials

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2020 31 December 2019
GBP m GBP m
Operating income 164 121
Operating expenses {1063} (94.5)
Loss allowance on 05 (0.9
financial assets
Profit before tax 10.6 16.9
‘Key performance indicators
Year ended Year ended
31 December 2020 31 December 2019
. GBP M GBP m
Net new assets 1,152.1 700.0
Return on assets’ 68bps 69hps
Operating profit 101 7.5
Cost income ratio 91% 84%

' Return pn assets is calculzied as operating incore tess dividends over the simple average of opening and
closing AUM bocked in EFGIUK.

Capitat

The Prudenrtial Regulation Authority ("PRA") supervises the Company
on a stand-alone and consolidated basis. The figures shown betow
are on the stand-alone basis and will not necessarily correspond to
capital balances included elsewhere in these Financial Statements.

The Common Equity Tier 1{"CET1") capital ratio decreased to 13.1%
(2019: 14.2%) due to an increase in risk weighted assets (RWA'). RWA
increased by 13.3% to GBP 1,385.3 million (2019: GBP 1,222.5 million),
principally due to an increase in risk weighted mortgage lending,
which increased by 34.3% to GBP 637,406 {2019: GBP 47&,#937). The
total capital ratio decreased to 17.9% {2019: 19.6%), also impacted by
the strong lending activity throughout the year.

‘Year ended Year ended

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

GBP m GBP M

Common equity tier 1 capital 1809 173.4
Total capital 2475 25400
Total risk weighted assets 13853 12225
Comman equity tier 1 ratio 13.3% 14.2%
Total capital ratio 17.9% 19.6%

Funding
EFGIUK's Treasury function, in conjunction with EFGI, manages the
Company's funding and liguidity to support the private banking
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business and manage interest rate and currency risk. In 2020 the
Company maintained a consistent approach to funding.

Total funding increased by 11.6% to GBP 3,807.6 million (2019: GBP
3,411.0 million). This was due to a 16.0% increase in customer
deposits in the year.

Year ended Year ended

21 December 2020 31 December 2019

GBP m GBP m

Customer deposits 30153 25989
Banks 527.6 552.0
Subordinated loans 66.9 66.9
Equity 197.8 1925
Total funding 3,807.6 3,411.0

Liquidity

The Company maintains a strong liquidity position, ensuring that it
is comfortably ahead of both its internal risk appetite but also
regulatory requirements. Most of our liquidity requirements are held
on deposit with the Bank of England, in high guality liquid assets or
assets rated A or higher.

We regularly assess, and stress test our liguidity requirements and
continue to comfortably exceed our liquidity ratios, such as a
liguidity coverage ratio of 178% as at 31 December 2020 (2019; 284%).

Year ended Year ended
31 December 3020 1 Decembgr 2019
GBP m GHEP m

Cash & balances at central
banks 7913 634.0
Other banks 107.3 543

Investment securities;

Government 327.9 399.0
Other public sector 78.5 79.0
Banks 3312 4412
QOther issuers . 12.4 13.0
Treasury assets 1,648.6 16205

Principal risks and uncertainties

Risk Management

The Company acknowledges that carrying out business in the
banking and financial services industry entails risks and that events
may impact the Company's abitity to deliver on its objectives. The
Company believes that the proper management of risks is critical for
continued success.

Approach to risk management

The Company's approach te risk management is as follows:

the Company uses the three lines of defence medel and there are
independent Risk and Compliance functions with clearly defined
objectives;

there is a defined risk strategy and risk appetite;

there is a risk management framework with policies, standards
and procedures to govern risk management; and

the effectiveness and efficiency of risk management is supervised
by the Board of Directors with the support and advice of a
dedicated Risk Committee.

The role of risk culture in supporting effective risk management
The Company believes that employee behaviour is key to ensure
sound risk management, and that this is guided by the risk cufture
of the organisation. Accordingly, the risk culture is viewed as a core
compenent of effective risk management Financia! and non-
financial incentives are reviewed to ensure they do not encourage
excessive risk-taking. The Board of Directors sets and approves the
risk strategy, the risk appetite and the risk management framework
of the Company at least annually and monitors its risk profile, as
well as the effectiveness of risk management.

Risks and uncertainties

The following pages set out the principal risks and uncertainties
which may impact the Company's ability to deliver its strategy, how
it seeks to mitigate these risks and the change in the perceived level
of risk in the year. Whilst we constantly monitor our portfolio for
emerging risks, the Company's activities remain unchanged. As a
result, the principal risks and uncertainties that the Company faces
and our approach to mitigating them remain broadly consistent with
prior years.

This summary should not be regarded as a complete and
comprehensive statement of alt patential risks and uncertainties
faced by the Company but reflects those which the Company
currently believes may have a significant impact on its performance
and prospects,

Credit risk

As a lender, the Company is exposed to credit losses if customers
are unable to repay loans and outstanding interest and fees. At 31
December 2020 the Company had loans and advances to customers
amounting to GBP 2.2 billion (2019 GBP 1.8 billion),

The Company atso has exposure to counterparties with which it
places deposits or trades and has in place a small number of
derivative contracts to hedge interest rate and foreign exchange
exposures,

Mitigation

We seek to minimise our exposure to credit losses from lending by:

- applying strict lending criteria when testing the credit quality and
covenant of the borrower;

- maintaining consistent and conservative loan to vatue ratios;

- lending on a predominantly secured basis against identifiable
assets such as property or investment portfolios;

- a clear, consistent and robust process for managing arrears; and

- operating a strong control and governance framework for our
CROs with oversight by a central credit risk team.

Qur exposures to counterparties are mitigated by:

- continuous monitoring of the credit quality of our counterparties
within approved set limits;

- Harris Allday securities are settled on'a delivery versus payment
basis; and

- counterparty exposure and settlement failure monitoring controts
are also in place.

Change

There was 1 loan written off during the year to 31 December 2020 for
GBP 62,000 (2019: 1 for GBP %,300,000). The settlement of a number of
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older loans at nil loss te the bank resulted in a GBP 0.5 million
reduction (2019: GBP 0.7 million charge} from credit loss provisions
relative to a loan book of GBP 2.2 bitlion {2019: GBP 1.8 billion).
During 2020, as a direct result of the COVID-19 outbreak, clients were
allowed payment holidays on their loans. Al clients, apart from one,
who were granted payment holidays have now resumed payment.
The Company’s other counterparty exposures are broadly
unchanged, with most of our liquidity requirements and surplus
funding placed with the Bank of England or in high guality liquid
assets. We continue to monitor ¢losety the UK economic outlook,
particularly in the light of COVID-19 and Brexit.

Further commentary ¢n the credit quality of our loan book is
outlined in Note 27, Further details on loans and advances to
customers and debt securities held are in Notes 12 and 13. Qur
approach to credit risk management and monitoring, as well as
further details on the value of collaterat held, is cutfined in more
detail in Note 27.

Employees

The quality and expertise of our employees is critical to the success
of the EFGI group. The loss of senior management, key CROs or
Private Banking teams may have an adverse impact on the
Company's operations and ability to deliver its strategy.

Mitigation

The Company seeks to attract, retain and develop staff by:

operating remuneration and benefits structures which are

competitive and recognise and reward performance;

creating an inclusive environment that embraces diversity,

euiding managers and employees in understanding the

importance of physical and mental wellbeing in the workplace;

- creating a structured wellbeing program for our employees
through seven wellness piltars;

- listening to employee feedback through engagemeént surveys and
developing action plans;

- being involved in EFGI's talent development programme which
offers mentoring to high potential employees;

- implementing succession planning for management committee
and critical reles; and

- launching a leadership and management training program that, in
part, witl help to identify current and future leaders.

We are committed to giving full consideration to applications for
employment from disabled persons as well as providing

continuing employment to existing employees who become
disabled during their emptoyment where practicable. Where existing
employees become disabled, whether temporarily or permanently,
we adapt the working envirenment and where possible offer flaxible
working, training and graduated back-to-work plans in cenjunction
with accupational health to ensure the retention of employees.

Change

EFGIUK is focused on hiring established CROs, as they are important
drivers for growth, while enhancing the productivity of our existing
teams. We continued to make considerable progress in this area in
2020, with the cohort of 11 CROs wheo joined in late 2019 and the &
who joined in 2020, starting to deliver results despite the impact of
COVID-19. Our ability to hire new talent reflects our position in the

market and confirms that our CRO model is attractive, In additien,
we further enhanced the productivity of our existing CROs,
increasing the average portfolio size per existing CROC and applying
stricter pefformance measures.

During the COViD-19 crisis the Company has focussed on the
wellness of its employees, inctuding through providing support with
home office equipment and warkshops to assist staff with the new
challenges of working from home.

Capital and liquidity
EFGIUK's ability to access capital and funding remains key to support
our lending activities and the liquidity requirements,

Mitigation

Liquidity is assessed daily, and capitat is assessed at least weekly to
ensure adequate liquidity and capital is held and remains readily
accessible in stressed conditions.

Change

Our term deposits reduced by 17.5% to GBF 1,320 miliion at 31
December 2020 (2019: GBP 1,600 million), as clients moved funds to
current accounts foliowing the COVID-19 crisis. Our current account
balances increased by 81% to GBP 1,370 million in 2020 (201%: GBP
755 million). Owing to the planned closure of Guernsey we anticipate
a significant transfer of funding into EFGIUK, which will increase our
term deposit funding. Further commentary on funding and liquidity
is provided on pages 4 and Note 29. Further financial anatysis of our
liguidity is shown in Note 29.

Economic environment

Any downturn in economic conditions may impact the Company's

performance through:

- lower demand for the Company's products and services;

- lower investor risk appetite as a result of financiai markets
instability, and

- higher credit losses as a result of the inabitity of our customers to
service debt and lawer asset values, and property, on which loans
are secured.

Mitigation

The Company's lending is predominantly on a secured basis,
principally against centrat London properties with conservative loan
to value ratios. We monitor external events closely and regutarly
update the Board of any changes which we believe could have a
material impact. We test the robustness of our financial position by
carrying out regular stress testing on our performance and financial
position in the event of adverse economic conditions.

Change

Economic uncertainty and risk te the macroeconomic outlook
increased in 2029, particularly due to the impact of the COVID-19
pandemic. The potential economic impacts of future events are
closely monitored through our horizon risk framework. tn March
2020, the COVID-19 virus expanded to a fully-fledged global crisis
impacting the broader health and safety of our staff and clients. This
triggered operational contingency, business continuity and
resilience actions to ensure provision of critical ctient services,
fulfilment of our regulatory responsibilities and protection of our
staff and clients. These actions have been maintained since March
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2020 and the business continues to operate with a high degree of
operational resilience. This is reflected in our ICAAP stress testing,
which demonstrated a Total Capital Requirement surplus of GBP 76
million at the end of our five-year-plan, and an ILAAP liquidity
surplus of GBP 556 million in the next year, under the most severe
stress testing scenarios.

The crisis has created high volatility in the global financial and
credit markets, which can affect our client relationships, financiat
profile and resilience. Appropriate pre-emptive stress testing around
our vulnerabilities and resilience was implemented and is
monitored regularly.

Legal and regulatory

Failure to comply with existing legal, compliance, regulatory or tax
requirements, or to react to changes to these requirements, may
have negative consequences for the Company.

Failing 10 treat customers fairly, to safeguard client assets or to
provide advice and products which are in clients' best interests
could damage our reputation and may lead to tegal or regulatory
sanctions, litigation or customer redress. This applies to current,
past and future business.

The Company’s business model, which includes the provision of
services to more complex international clients. means that itis
subject to higher levels of compliance risk. This is the risk of tegal or
regulatory sanctions, material financial loss, or foss of reputation
which the Company may suffer as a result of its faiture to comply
with laws, regulations, rules, retated self-regulatory organisation
standards, generally accepted practices, and codes of conduct
applicable te all its activities from, for exampie, the onboarding of
clients who do not meet our regquired criteria. Similarly, changes to
regulation and taxation can impact our financial performance,
capital and liquidity and the markets in which we operate.

Mitigation

The Company seeks to manage these risks by:

investing in our personneét and technical rescurces to help to
ensure that we maintain appropriate legal, compliance and
regulatory coverage;

implementing appropriate policies, standards and procedures and
the use of risk-based monitoring programmes to test adherence;
- monitoring the changes in the reguiatory environment and
adapting directives and procedures as required;

having regular specialised training sessions delivered to all staff
to raise their awareness and understanding of the compliance
risks;

providing clear advice on legat, compliance and regulatory
requirements, including in relaticn to the scope of regulatory
permissions;

responding in an appropriate, risk-based and proportionate
manner to any changes to the legal and regulatory environment
and those driven by any strategic initiatives;

investing in training for ail staff inciuding anti-money laundering
(“AML"), bribery & corruption, conduct risk, data protection and
information security. Additional tailored training for relevant
employees is provided where appropriate;

maintaining constructive and positive relatienships and dialogue
with regulatory bodies and tax authorities;

- providing straightforward and transparent products and services
to our clients;

- reviewing and approving new products and services through a
clear governance and approval process; and

- maintaining a prudent capital position with headrgom above
minimum capital requirements.

Change

The Company's approach to legal and regulatory risk remains
unchanged. We cantinued to invest in our people and infrastructure
and improving and standardising our processes.

The HMRC investigation, originally noted in our 208 Arnual Report,
remains ongoing. Further detail on the taxation charge for the year
is shown in Note 9 of the financial statements.

At the start of 2020, EFGIUK set out a roadmap that would enabie the
Bank to comply with the cessation of LIBOR. The regulatory roadmap
has since been revised and EFGIUK updated its roadmap to conform
10 the interim milestones. EFGIUK has selected an appropriate
replacement rate for LIBOR, being the overnight index rate, and will
only offer products referencing this rate from 1st April 2021.

Operaticnal risk

The Company is exposed to various operational risks through its
day-to-day cperations, all of which have the potential to resutt in
financial loss or adverse impact.

Adverse impacts to the business, customers, third parties and the
markets in which we operate are considered within the context of
our risk management framework, including an operational resilience
framework designed to ensure the end-to-end delivery of critical
business services.

Mitigation

The Company seeks to mitigate operational risk through:

- sustaining robust operational risk management processes,
governance and management information;

- identifying key systems, third party retationships, processes and
staff;

- investing in cyber security including expertise, tools and staff
engagement;

- increasing focus on data protection controts;

- adopting fraud prevention aligned with our risk profile; and

- testing recovery capabilities, including our recovery plan, ard
planning communications approaches for possible scenarios.

Change

Market and regulatory expectations continue to in¢rease in retation
to operational risk management and resilience. In line with this
environment, we continue to develop and evolve our capacity to
reliably deliver key services.

Competition

The Company operates in the competitive lending and wealith
management business and experiences competition from both UK
and international banks. Currently we continue ta experience high
levels of competition within the UK mortgage market, as excess
liquidity has driven down margins. Elevated and continuing levels of
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competition may impact the Company's ability to write loans at its
desired risk and return criteria, resulting in lower net new assets
and lower revenue.

Mitigation

EFGIUK has a clear strategy and value proposition: we want to be a
leading Swiss private bank that is renowned for its distinctive client
approach, Our CRO model sets us apart in the market and enables
us to offer truly client-centric service and our risk appetite and
prici‘ng criteria are well défined.

Change

Despite the chailenging conditions facing the entire industry in 20290,
we contihued to refocus our business on profitable growth. These
efforts translated into significant net new asset inflows and, as a
result ,our AUM increased from GBP 14,932 mition to GBP 16530
million and the strong loan book growth in 2020 positions us well to
benefit in 2021.

Market risk

Market volatility impacting equity and fixed income exposures,
and/or changes in interest and exchange rates, have the patential
to affect the Company's performance, through their impact on both
client portfolics and the Company's balance sheet,

Mitigation

Our policy is to minimise interest rate risk by matching fixed and
variable interest rate assets and liabitities and using swaps where
appropriate. Except for the Company’s AT1 bend, the capital and
reserves of the Company do not have interest rate liabilities and as
such are not hedged. Foreign exchange exposures are generally
hedged using foreign exchange forwards or currency swaps with
exposures monitored daily against approved limits,

Change

The Company's approach and the underlying risks are unchanged,
Further detail on the Company's exposure to market risk is outlined
in Note 28.

The sensitivity analysis on interest rate exposures shown in Note
28.1.2 demonstrates the limited [evel of exposure te interest rate
and foreign exchange movements.

Horizon risks

The Company also regularly reviews upcoming risks on & forward-
looking basis through fermal horizon scanning and consideration of
prospective risks, thraugh its risk and management committees,
which include industry, global economic and wider risks.

Climate change The Company is developing a framework for the
management of financial risks arising from climate change under
the direction of the Chief Risk Officer, overseen by the Risk
Committee. We anticipate that the risk to EFGIUK will be largely
limited to client investment risk and the potential impact on our
clients’ wealth and their capacity to repay their loans. The
Company's credit portfolio is primarily focussed on central Lendon,
where collateral is expected to have limited exposuze to both
physical and transition risk; however, potential risks may arise from

tightening energy efficient standards for domestic and commercial
buildings impacting the risks in buy-to-let portfolics. The Company's
Lombard Portfolic is collateralised mainly by portfolios investing in
weil diversified equity and fixed income funds as well as cash
deposits. EFGIUK's Investment Portfolio is mainly exposed to
sovereign issuers and financial institutions with short maturities and
is not therefore expected to have material climate change exposure.
The Company has no direct exposure to the car industry, energy
sector or other companies in the wider economy vulnerable to a
faiture to adapt towards a low carbon-economy.

Section 172 statement

The Directors have acted in a way that they consider, in good faith,

to be most likely to promote the success of the Company for the

benefit of its members as a whole, and in deing so had regard,
amongst other maiters, to:

- the likely conseguences of any decision in the long term;

- the interests of the Company’s employees; the need to foster the
Company’s business relationships with suppliers, customers and
athers; and the impact of the Company’s operations on the
community and the environment;

- the desirability of the Company maintaining a reputation for high
standards of business conduct; and

- the need to act fairly between members of the Company.

The Directors also considered the views and interests of a wider set
of stakeholders, including our customers, our parent campany, our
employees and our regulators. Considering this broad range of
interests is an important part of the way the Board makes decisions,
although in batancing those different perspectives it may not always
be possible to deliver the desired outcome for all. The Board will
sametimes engage directly with certain stakeholders on certain
issues, but the size and distribution of our stakehelders and of the
Company means that stakeholder engagement often takes place at
an operational level

The Board considers and discusses information from across the
organisation to help it understand the impact of its operations, and
the interests and views of our key stakeholders, it also reviews
strategy, financial and operational performance, and infermation
covering areas such as key risks, legal and regulatory compliance at
each meeting. Consideration of the above factors and other relevant
matters is embedded into all Board decisien-making, strategy
development and risk assessment throughout the year, As a result
of these activities, the Board has an overview of engagement with
stakehalders, and other relevant factors, which enables the
Directors to comply with their legal duty under section 172 of the
Companies Act 2006.

The Strategic Report was approved by the Board and signed by order
of the Board:

A Evans

L - Cvrouns

Company Secretary
1 April 2021
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Directors’ Report

The Directors present their report together with the audited
Financiat Statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2020.

Results and dividends

The results for the year are set out on page 19 of the Financial
Statements. The Directors do not recommend a dividend for the
year (2019 nil).

Directors

The Directors of the Company who were in office during the year
and up to the date of signing the financial statements are given on
page 3 of this Annual Report. All Directors listed on that page were
Directors throughout the year, apart from Anthony Cooke-
Yarborough, who resigned on 10 December 2020,

Details on the Directors' remuneration can be found in the Note 7
of the financial statements.

Birectors’ Indemnities and Insurance

The Company maintains Directors’ and Officers’ liability insurance
for its Directors and Officers. Qualifying third party indemnity
provisions for the purposes of section 234 of the Companies Act
2006 were in force during the year and remain in force at the date
of this report.

Strategic Report
The Company's Strategic Report can be found on pages 4to 8 of
this Annual Report.

Business activities

The Company's business activities, together with a description of
future devetopments (including the factors likely to affect future
development and perfermance) and its summarised financial
position, are set out in the Strategic Report.

Charitable danations

During the year the Company made donations totalling GBP 6,473
{2019: GBP 701) ta various charities in support of their social
responsibility objectives.

Diversity and equality

The Company is an equal opportunities employer and is committed
to ensuring that alt cur employees can be proud to work for us,
regardless of their gender, age, race, ethnicity, disability, sexual
orientation or background.

Employees

Employees are updated on any changes that may affect them via
regular internal communications and briefings. Eligible employees
are required to participate in a deferral scheme whereby an
element of variable compensation is deferred and settled at a
future date either in cash or equity-settled via options granied over
shares in EFGIUK. in addition, the Company operates a HMRC
approved Share Incentive Plan which is available to all employees.

Financial instruments
Details of the Company's financial instruments can be found in
Note 27.7,

Financial risk management

The Company has procedures in ptace to identify, monitor and
evaluate the significant risks it faces. The Company reviews and
adjusts its risk appetite annually as part of its strategy-setting
process. This aligns risk-taking with the achievement of strategic
objectives. Adherence to the risk appetite is monitored by the
Company's Risk Committee. The Company’s principal risks and
uncertainties are described on pages 4 to 8 and the risks
associated with the Company’s financial instruments are analysed
in Note 27 of the Annual Report statements. The Company's hedging
policy can be found in Note 11 of the Annual Report.

Post Balance Sheet events
There have been no material post balance sheet events.

Branches )
The Company has a branch in Jersey.

Capital structure

The issued ordinary share capital of the Company as at 1 lanuary
2020 and 31 December 2020 comprised of 31,595,906 ordinary shares
of E1 each.

Politicat donations
No pelitical donations were made during the year (2019 Nil).

Greenhouse gas ("GHG") emissions

1a {ine with the Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting
requirements the below table discloses the Company's UK energy
use and GHG emissions.

Year ended

31 December 2020

Total energy usage (kWh) 997,350
Total GHG emissions (1C0ze) 233
GHG emissions per employee (tC0O:e) 0.5785

The table above includes scope 2 emissions associated with the
Company's operations, there are no material scope 1 emissions.
These predominantly relate to purchased electricity and gas
relating to the operation of the Company's offices. The total
purchased energy has been recorded based on data from the
Company's suppliers and the relevant government conversion
factors used to calculate the CO2e.

The company has various activities and initiatives in place to
reduce GHG emissions, including sourcing renewable electricity
where passible and utilising sensor lighting to minimise
unnecessary use.
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Directors’ Report

Independent Auditor

In line with the Competition and Markets Authority Statutory Audit
Services Order, EFGIUK must appoint a new external Auditor for its
year ending 31 December 2021. Fotlowing a selection process
overseen by the Chairman of the Audit Committee in 2019, BDO LLP
were recommended to the EFGIUK Board to be appointed as
externat Auditor. )

Pursuant to section 485 to 488 of the Companies Act 2006, the
Board has approved the appeintment of BDO LLP as the Company's
statutory auditor for the financial period commencing 1 January
2021,

Disclosure of information to the auditors

Each of the persons who are Directors at the date of approval of
this Annuat Report confirms that:

(a) so far as the Directors are aware, there is no relevant audit
information of which the Company's Auditors are unaware; and

(b) they have taken all steps that they ought to have taken as
Directors in order to make themselves aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the Company's Auditors are aware
of that information.

This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance
with the provistons of section 418 of the Companies Act 2006.

Going Concern

The Company has a strong business model and has traded
profitably during the year. it is well positioned in its core business,
well capitatised, soundly funded and has adequate access to '
liquidity, :

After making enquiries, the Directors have a reasonable
expectation that the Company has adequate resources to continue
in operation for the foreseeahle future. Accordingly, they continue
to adopt the going concern basis in the Annual Report.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and
the Financial Statements in accordance with applicable laws and
regulatigns, )

Company law requires the directors to prepare Finantial
Statements for each financial year. Under that law the directors
have prepared the Financial Statements in accordance with
international accounting standards ('1AS') in conformity with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and international
financial reporting standards ('iFRS’) adopted pursuant to_
Regulation (EC) No 1606/2002 as it applies in the European Union.

In preparing the Financial Statements, the Directors are required

to:

- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them
consistently;

- state whether applicable 1AS in conformity with the requirements
of the Companies Act 2006 and IFRS adopted pursuant to
Regulaticn {EC) No 1606/2002 as it applies in the European Union
have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed
and explained in the Financial Statements;

- make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and

- prepare the Financial Statements on the going concern basis
unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Company will
coatinue in business.

The Directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of

the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the

prevention and detection of fraud and ather irregularities.

The Directors are responsibie far keeping adequate accounting
records that are sufficient to shaw and explain the Company's
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the Company and enable them to ensure that
the Financial Statements comply with the Companies Act 2006.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of
the Company's website. Legistation in the United Kingdom
governing the preparation and dissemination of Financial
Statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions,

The Directors’ Report was approved by the Board and signed by
order of the Board:

A Evans

L - Cvounn

Company Secretary
1 April 2021

Annual Report 2020 | 10




EFG Private Bank Limited

Independent auditors’ report to the
members of EFG Private Bank Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion _

in our opinion, EFG Private Bank Limited's financial statements:

- give a true and fair view of the state of the company's affairs as at 31 December 2020 and of its profit and cash flows
for the year then ended;

- have been properly prepared in accordance with international accounting standards in conformity with the requirements

of the Companies Act 2006; and
- bhave been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual Report, which comprise: the balance sheet as at
31 December 2020; the income statement, statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and cash flow
statement for the year then ended; and the notes to the financial statements, which include a description of the significant
accounting policies.

Cur opinion is consistent with our reporting to the Audit Committee.

Separate opinion in relation to international financial reporting standards adopted
pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 1606/2002 as it applies in the European Union

As explained in Note B, Basis of Preparation to the financial statements, the company, in addition to applying international
accounting standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, has also applied international
financial reporting standards adopted pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 1606/2002 as it applies in the European Union.

In our opinion, the financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with international financial reporting
standards adopted pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 1606/2002 as it applies in the European Urion.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) ("1SAs (UK)") and applicable faw. Qur
responsibilities under 15As (UK) are further described in the Auditors’ respansibilities for the audit of the finahcial statements
section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements in the UK, which includes the FRC's Ethical Standard, as applicable to public interest entities, and we
have fuifilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, we declare that non-audit services prohibited by the FRC's Ethical Standard were
not provided.

Other than those disclosed in note 8 to the financial statements, we have provided no non-audit services to the company or
its controlied undertakings in the period under audit.
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Our audit approach

Overview
Audit scope

We perform a full scope audit of the financial statements of the company as a whole as a single component. The scope of
our audit and the nature, timing and extent of audit procedures performed were determined based on our risk assessment,
the financial significance of financiat statement line items and qualitative factors (including history of misstatement through
fraud or error}.

Key audit matters

- Tax provisions relating to transfer pricing

- Expected credit loss allowance - impairment of loans and advances to customers
- Implications of COVID-19 and the ability of the company to carry on business

Materiality
- Overalt materiality: £1,924,965 (2019: £1,052,344) based on 1% of Net Assets
- Performance materiality: £1,443,724 (2019: £787,509)

The scope of our audit
As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material misstatement in the financial
statements. :

Capability of the audit in detecting irregularities, including fraud

Irregutarities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line with
our responsibitities, outlined in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements seciion, to detect
material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of
detecting irregularities, including fraud, is detailed below.

Based on our understanding of the company and industry, we identified that the principal risks of non-compliance with laws
and regulations related to breaches of banking regutations such as, but not limited to, the Consumer Credit Act and unethical
and prohibited business practices, and we considered the extent to which non-compliance might have a material effect on
the financial statements. We also considered those laws and regulations that have a direct impact on the preparation of the
financial statements such as the Companies Act 2006. We evaluated management’s incentives and opportunities for
fraudulent manipulation of the financial statements (including the risk of override of controls), and determined that the
principal risks were retated to posting inappropriate journal entries by senior management to both reduce costs or inflate
profit or by unexpected staff members and departments; and management bias in accounting estimates. Audit procedures
performed by the engagement team included:

- Discussions with management, internal audit including consideration of known or suspected instances of non-
compliance with laws and regulations and fraud;

- Incorporation of unpredictability into the nature, timing and extent of our testing;
- Evaluation of the operating effectiveness of management’s controls designed to prevent and detect irregularities;

- Reviewing key correspondence with regulatory authorities such as the Financial Conduct Authority and the Prudential
Regulation Authority in relation to compliance with banking regulations;

- Challenging assumptions and judgements made by management in their significant accounting estimates, in relation
to the determination of expected credit loss atlowances and the provision relating to the ongoing HMRC investigation
{see related key audit matter below);

- ldentifying and testing journal entries, in particular any journal entries posted by senior management and or
unexpected staff members and departments; and

- Testing of period end adjustments.

There are inherent {imitations in the audit procedures described above. We are less likely to become aware of instances of
non-compliance with laws and regulations that are not closely related to events and transactions reflected in the financial
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statements. Also, the risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or intentional misrepresentations,

or through collusion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in the auditors’ professional judgement, were of mast significance in the audit of
the financial statements of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement
(whether or not due to fraud) identified by the auditors, including those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit
strategy; the allocation of resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team, These matters, and any
comments we make on the resutts of our procedures thereon, were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Thisis nota completé list of alt risks identified by our audit.

The key audit matters below are consistent with last year.

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Tax provisions relating to transfer pricing
Refer to: Note 2(b} - Critical accounting
estimates and judgements in applying
occounting policies, Note 9 - Income tax and
Note 21 - Provisions.

The company remains subject to a transfer
pricing enquiry from HMRC in relation to the
appropriateness of the pricing of various
intercompany services.

The cirrent tax liability reported on the
halance sheet includes amounts provided in
relation to this enquiry, as well as other
provisions in respect of interest and
penalties.

Management have prepared an assessment of
the potential adjustments which may arise as
a result of the HMRC enquiry. Of these, the
only item individually to give rise to a
material exposure is the fee for business
introducing services provided to EFG
Guernsey. This fee should be calculated at an
arm'’s length rate. Considering the judgement
required in order to determine an appropriate
arm’s length fee and the materiality of this
fee, we have determined that tax provisions
relating to transfer pricing are a key audit
matter.

Qur audit procedures included:

- Inquiry of management to understand the issues that have been
- identified, including updates on the HMRC investigation;
- Assessing the compliance of the tax risk provision with the
requirements of IFRIC 23, including the identification of the unit of
account, the application of the recognition step and approach to

measurement;

- Reviewing the company's correspondence with HMRG,
- Testing management's assessment of the potential impact and
resultant accounting treatment We assessed the reasonableness of
 management's assessment in conjunction with our Transfer Pricing
experts in relation to areas of uncertainty involving transfer pricing

jtdgements and estimates;

- tvaluating the disclosures made in the financial statements against
the requirements of IAS 12 Incomes Taxes anhd IAS 1 Presentation of

financial Statements,

Based on the procedures performed and the evidence obtained we
found management's judgements, assumptions and disclosures in the

financial statements to be reasonable.
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Expected credit losses - Impairment of loans
and advances to customers

Refer to: Note 2(a) - Critical accounting
estimates and judgements in applying
accounting policies and Note 27 - Credit risk
Determining expected credit losses (ECL)
involves management judgement and is
subject to a high degree of estimation
uncertainty. The uncertainty and credit risk is
mitigated by the nature of the lending given
the majority of lending is secured and the

‘| value of the collateral is typically in excess of
the amount of the customer exposure,

The calculation of ECL is completed in
Switzerland based on models, and whilst the
modetled ECL does not result in & material
balance, ECL is an area of focus for the audit
as the modelling methodologies, assumptions
and size of the ECL provision are subjective,
and individual exposures are in excess of
audit materiality. In addition, recent COVID-19
developments increase uncertainty around
recovery of the credit impaired loans and the
valuation of collateral, and we have focused
our procedures over both of these areas.

- testing of critical data, collateral and assumptions for a sample of

We evaluated the design and tested the operating effectiveness of
relevant conatrols, including;

- valuation of the collateral;

- loan authorisation and disbursement;

- recording of loan data into the loan system; and

- IT controls over the systems used to record customer lending and
repayments.

We have performed substantive procedures, including:

- testing the watchlist process to ensure that the watchlist is
complete and accurate;

- testing the appropriate classification of loans in staging on a sample
basis;

- testing a sample of critical data used in the impairment models,
including the collateral;

credit impaired exposures;

- assessed the completeness of the ECL provision, by testing a sample
of customer accounts included in watchlist but identified as non-
credit impaired;

- assessing the reasonableness and likelihood of the forward looking
economic forecasts and weightings assigned to the scenarios. This
includes assessment that the multipte economic scenarios applied
in Switzerland are appropriate in the UK context;

- challenging how management is satisfied that risks have been
appropriately addressed in the models and watchlist process so that
post model adjustments are not required; and

- challenging how management has considered the impact of COVID-
1% on expected credit loss allowance and the conclusion that it has
had a mirimal impact for the year ended 31 December 2020,

We have engaged the PwC team responsible for the audit of EFG

International AG to perform:

- testing over the compliance of ECL methodologies and assumptions
with the requirements of IFRSY;

- independent ECL and internal ratings calculation on a sample of
foans;

- assessment of the results of independent model validation; and

- assessment of the appropriateness of modelling methodologies that
did not change during the year, giving specific consideration to
COVID-19 and whether management judgementat adjustments were
needed.

We evaluated and tested the credit risk disclosures in the Annuai
Report and Financial Statements.

Based on the procedures performed and the evidence obtained, we
are comfortable that the ECL provision is within a reasonable range of
outcomes.
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implications of COVID-19 and the ability of
the company to carry on business

The COVID-19 pandemic has led to
unprecedented economic conditions,
resulting in government support programmes
and regulatory intervention to support
businesses and people. One of the biggest
impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic is changing
how companies operate their businesses, with
one of the most substantial impacts being the
transition to remote working. This triggered
operational contingency, business continuity
and resilience actions to ensure provision of
critical client services, fulfilment of the
regulatory respoasibilities and protection of
the employees and clients.

A substantial proportion of the company's
employees have been working remaotely
during 2020, with some consequential
changes on the company's processes and the
control environment, some of which were
relevant for financial reporting purposes.

The Direciors have considered the impact of
the pandemic on the company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. Based on recent
and forecast financial performance and the
availability of capital resources and liquidity,
the Directors have concluded that there is no
material uncertainty and the company will
continue as a going concern for at least
twelve manths from the date of this report.

We critically assessed the impact of COVID-19 on thé planning and

execution of our audit In particular:

- we assessed the impact of the disruption caused by COVID-19 on the
risks of materiat misstatement. We reviewed key risk reports,
internal audit reports and discussed the impact of the pandemic
with management. We concluded that no significant changes to our
risk assessment were required;

- we evaluated the controls relevant to our audit by undertaking
walkthroughs of key processes and tested the operating
effectiveness of relevant controls that we planned to rely on. We
considered the impact of remote working on the effectiveness of
controls.

- we considered the impact on estimates included in the financial
statements, in particular in relation to expected credit loss
allowance. We did not identify any material impacts on estimates as
at 31 December 2020 {see also the above key audit matter);

- we reviewed management's disclosures in relation to the COVID-19
in the financial statements and read the other information in the
Strategic Report; and

- we adapted our own working practices to remote working and
ensured we gathered appropriate audit evidence.

We reviewed management's going concern assessment. We also read
the Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP) and Internal
Liquidity Adequacy Assessment Process {ILAAP) submissions to the
PRA and evaluated the impact of COVID-19 on the company’s financial
performance, business operations and regulatory capital and liquidity
ratios. We did not identify any contradictory evidence in these
documents.

As a resutlt of these procedures, we concluded that the impact of
COVID-19 as it relates to the going concern assumption has been
appropriately evaluated for the purposes of the preparation of the
financial statements.

Based on the work performed, we are satisfied that our audit
addressed the impact of the disruption caused by COVID-19. We have
also concluded that the impact of COVID-19 has been appropriately
evaluated and reflected in the preparation of these financial
statements.

How we tailored the audit scope

We tailored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed encugh work to be able to give an opinion on the financial
statements as a whole, taking into account the structure of the Company, the accounting processes and controls, and the
industry in which it operates.

Within the financial statements, the Company has been recognised as one operating segment EFG Private Bank Limited which
is domiciled in the UK The Company provides banking, stockbroking, wealth management and investment advisory services
out of the London Branch, Jersey Branch and Harris Allday investment management division with support from its immediate
parent EFG Internationat AG which is domiciled in Switzerland.
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For each financial statement line item, we considered the financial significance and gualitative factors, including the presence
of any significant audit risks, to determine our audit scope. Additionally, the risk of material misstatement was mitigated
through audit procedures including testing of transaction level controts and analytical review procedures.

We have determined that there are two financially significant components: London and Jersey branches, over which we have
performed a full scope audit of all material primary statement account baiances. We identified Harris Aliday as an
- insignificant component and have performed audit procedures over the material account balances.

We tested and examined information using sampling and other auditing techniques, to the extent we considered hecessary
to provide a reasonable basis for us to form our own judgements. We obtained audit evidence by testing the effectiveness of
controls, substantive procedures or a combination of both.

Materiality

The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materiality. We set certain quantitative thresholds for materiality.
These, together with qualitative considerations, helped us to determine the scope of our audit and the nature, timing and
extent of our audit procedures on the individual financial statement line items and disclosures and in evaluating the effect
of misstatements, both individually and in aggregate on the financial statements as a whote.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiality for the financial statements as a whole as follows:

Overall company £1,924,965 {2019; £1,052,344).

materiality ‘

How we determined { 1% of Net Assets. (2019: We calculated materiality as of 1% of Net Assets (£1,908,252).

it However we have used the materiality provided to us for Group reporting to PwC
Switzerland) .

Rationale for The primary users of the Financial Statements are the parent company and their

benchmark applied regulators who are principally focused on the regulatory capital of the Company. Net
assets was chosen as the materiality benchmark as it closely corresponds to regulatory
capitat.

We use performance materiality to reduce to an appropriately low level the probability that the aggregate of uncorrected
and undetected misstatements exceeds overall materiality. Specifically, we use performance materiality in determining the
scope of our audit and the nature and extent of our testing of account balances, classes of transactions and disclosures, for
exampte in determining sample sizes. Our performance materiality was 75% of overall materiality, amounting to 1,443,724
for the company financial statements.

In determining the performance materiality, we considered a number of factors - the history of misstatements, risk
assessment and aggregation risk and the effectiveness of controls - and concluded that an amount at the upper end of our
narmal range was appropriate.

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to them misstatements identified during our audit above £96,000
{2079: £94,000) as well as misstatements below that amount that, in our view, warranted reporting for qualitative reasons.

Conclusions relating to going concern

Our evaluation of the directors’ assessment of the company’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern bhasis of

accounting included:

- We reviewed management’s going concern assessment which included a summary of the current capital and liquidity
position of the company.

- We reviewed supporting information, including the company's most recent ICAAP and ILAAP submissions to the PRA,

- We made enquiries of management to understand the COVID-19 impact on the company’s recent financial
performance, business cperations and regulatory capital and liquidity ratios.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any materiat uncertainties relating to events or conditions
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that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the company's ability to continue as a going concern for a
period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in
the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this conclusion is not a guarantee as to the company's
ability to continue as a going concern.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant
sections of this report.

Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and our
auditors’ report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information. Qur opinion on the financial statements
does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent otherwise
explicitly stated in this report, any form of assurance thereon.

tn connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained
in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent material inconsistency or material
misstatement, we are required to perform procedures to conclude whether there is a material misstatement of the financial
statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report
hased on these responsibilities.

With respect to the Strategic report and Directors' Report, we also considered whether the disclosures required by the UK
Companies Act 2006 have been included.

Based on our work undertaken in the course of the audit, the Companies Act 2006 requires us also to repaort certain opinions
and matters as described below.

Strategic report and Directors' Report

in our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the Strategic report and
birectors' Report for the year ended 31 December 2020 is consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared in
accordance with appticable legal requirements.

In light of the khowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in the course of the audit, we did
not identify any material misstatements in the Strategic report and Directors' Report.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Directors' Responsibility Statement, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements in accordance with the applicable framework and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view.
The directors are also responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

tn preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the company's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting untess
the directors either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
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is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs (UK} will always detect a
matertal misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individuaily
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

Our audit testing might include testing complete populations of certain transactions and balances, possibly using data
auditing techniques. However, it typically involves selecting a limited number of items for testing, rather than testing
complete populations. We will often seek to target particular items for testing based on their size or risk characteristics. In
other cases, we will use audit sampling to enable us to draw a conclusion about the population from which the sample is
selected.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC's website at:
www.fre.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditors’ report.

Use of this report

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company's members as a body in accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or
assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this repert is shown or into whose hands it may
come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

Other required reporting

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:
- we have not obtained all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

- adequate accounting records have not been kept by the company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

- certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
- the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.
We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

Appointment

Following the recommendation of the Audit Committee, we were appointed by the directors on 31 August 1989 to audit the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 1989 and subsequent financial periods. The period of total
uninterrupted engagement is 32 years, covering the years ended 31 December 1989 to 31 December 2020.

%"{g ﬂﬁ‘ Aud

Laura Needham (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

1 April 2021
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Income Statement

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2020 31 December 2019
Note GBP ‘000 GBP '000
Interest income 64,433 95,457
Interest expense (22877) (45,414)
Net interest income 3 41,556 50,043
Bankiqg fee and commission income 59,864 47,150
Banking fee and commission expense B . (3,731). (3,230}
Net fee and commission income 4 56,133 43920
bividend income 9,830 12,700
Net trading income and foreign exchange gains less losses 5335 4,385
Gams less losses on disposal of financial assets 3512 .- 1,043
Net other income 18,677 18,128
Operating and Investing income “116,366 112,091
Operating expenses _ 5 . (108,311) {94,540} -
Reversal of loss allowance / {loss allowance) on financial assets at amortised cost S
and debt instruments measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive income 532. . (652)
Profit before tax : ' ‘ 10,587 16,899
Inceme tax credit / (charge) 9 689 {4,881)
Net profit after tax 1,276 12,018
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Statement of Comprehensive Income

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2020 31 December 2019
Note GBP ‘000 GBP ‘000
Net profit for the year 11,276 12,018
Other Comprehensive Income / (expense)
ftems that-may be reclassified subsequently to the Income Statement
Net (losses) on investments in debt instruments measured at fair value through Other (1,813) (69)
Comprehensive income (“FVOCI")
Net gains on investments in equity instruments designated at FvOC! 303 93
Net (losses) on investments in debt instruments measured at FYOC: hedge instruments (760) (370)
Transfer to the Income Statement of realised gains / (1osses) on debt instruments at, 2,415 (1,143)
FVOCI
Fair value gains on cash flow hedges - 49
Total Other Comprehensive Income [ (expense) for the year 143 {1.440)
income tax relating to components of Other Comprehensive Income (284) {348)
Total Other Comprehensive income / (expense) for the year, net of tax (141} {1,788)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 1,135 10,230

The notes on pages 24 to 61 form an integral part of these Financial Statements
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Balance Sheet

31 December 2020

31 December 2019

Note GBP '000 GBP 000
Assets
Cash and balances with central banks 10 791,333 634,025
Due from other banks 10 'IO?,Z‘ETJr 54312
Derivative financial instruments 1i 9,400 18,530
Financial assets at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income 12 750,004 932,249
Loans and advances to customers 13 2,178,300 1,784,543
Investments in subsidiaries 14 10,045 10,000
Property, plant and equipment 15 6,232 13,067
Intangible assets 16 1,259 1,533
Deferred income tax assets 17 4112 3,699
Other assets 18 53,679 52,711
Total assets 3,914,661 3,504,669
Liabilities
Due to other banks 19 527,589 551,954
Due to customers 20 3,015,265 2,598,826
Derivative financial instruments il 37.493 22,385
Current income tax liabilities 2,925 5153
Provisions 3l 2,347 2,368
Other liabilities 22 64,374 64,506
Subordinated loans 24 66,921 66,918
Total liabilities 3716914 3,312,210
Equity
Share capital 25 31596 31,596
Share premium - 96,639 - 96,629
Capital redemption reserve 10,000 10,000
Other reserves 8889 9,786
Retained earnings 50,623 44,438
Total equity 197,747 192,459
Total equity and liabilities 3,914,661 3,504,669

The Financial Statements on pages 19 to 61 were approved by the Board of Directors on 31 March 2021 and signed on its

behalf by: ‘
T

R Thomas
Chief Executive Officer
1 April 202t

The notes on pages 24 to 61 form an integrat part of these Financial Staterments

Chief Financial Officer
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Statement of Changes in Equity

Attributable to owners of the parent

Capital
Share Share Redemption Other Retained Total
capital  premium reserves Reserves earnings equity
GBP'000 GBP'000 GBP000 GBP000 GRBP'O00 GBPO00
At 1 January 2019 1,596 96,639 10,000 13,402 38,279 159,916
Net profit for the year - - - - 12,018 12,08
Net losses on investments in debt instruments
measured at FVOCI - - - (1,489) - {1,489)
Fair vatue losses on cash flow hedges - - - 49 - 49
Income tax relating to components of Other
Comprehensive Income - - - (348) - (348)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - - - (1,788) © 12,08 10,23C
Share capital subscribed during the year 30,000 - - - - 30,000
AT1interest treated as appropriation of retained
earnings - - - - (5,859) (5,859)
Employee equity incentive plans amortisation
and net of exercise costs ‘ - ‘ - - {1,828} - (1.828)
At 3t December 2019 31,596 96,639 10,000 9,786 44,438 192,459
Net profit for the year - - - 1376 . 1276
Net gains on investments in debt instruments ‘
measured at FvOC) o - - - 143 - 143
Income tax relating to components of Other
Cemprehensive Income : - - (284) - . {284)
Totat Comprehensive Income for the year - - - (141) 1276 14,135
AT interest treated as appropriaticn of retained . .
earnings ‘ - - - - (5431) {5.431)
Employee equity incentive plans amortisation ‘ '
and net of exercise costs - - - (s16) - (416) -
Transfers to retained earnings . - .- 2 . (340) 340 -
At 31 December 2020 ' . 31,596 96,639 10,000 . 8889 50,623 197,747

The notes gn pages 24 to 61 form an int_egral part of these Financial Statements
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Cash Flow Statement

Year ended Year ended
Note 31 December 2020 3 December 2019
GBP '0C0 GBP '000
Cash flows from operating activities .
interest sreceived 68,609 96,233
tnterest paid (23,674) (51,780)
Banking fee and commission received 53,630 48,470
Banking fee and commission paid {3,656) (3,303)
Net trading income 5335 4,385
Gther operating income received 3513 1,047
Staff costs {65,711} (69.718)
Other operating expenses (20,942} (22,239)
Income tax paid (251 {(916)
Cash flows from operating activities before changes in operating assets and 14,643 2,179
liabilities
Changes in operating asseis and liabilities
Net {decrease) in due ta / from other banks (29,510} (1.644)
Net decrease in derivative financial instruments 15,672 12,165
MNet increase in loans ard advances to customers (394,123) {(121,301)
Net decrease / {increase) in other assets 4364 (23,935}
Met increase in due to customers 421,412 354,384
Net {decrease) / increase in other liabilities {14,759} 18,852
Net cash flows frem operating activities " 17,699 240,700
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of investment securities (1,159,313} (773,228}
Proceeds from sale/maturities of securities 1,347,499 848,738
Investment in subsidiary undertakings (45) -
Purchase of intangible assets {289) (157)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 15 (476} (1.256)
Dividend received 9,830 12,700
Met cash flows from investing activities 197,206 86,799
Cash flows used in financing activities
Issue of share capital - 30,000
Net cash flows from financing activities - 30,000
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 214,905 357,499
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 688,337 330,838
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 214,905 357,499
Net foreign exchange difference ~ (a612) . -
898,630 688,337

Cash and cash equivalents . 10

The notes on pages 24 to 62 form an integral part of these financial Statements

FRETL St Y
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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EFG Private Bank Limited

A General Information

EFG Private Bank Limited (*the Company”) is incorporated and
domiciled in England and Wales, with registered company number
2321802 as a private company timited by shares. The Company's
immediate parent is £FG International AG (*EFGI”), a limited liability
companry incorporated and domiciled in Switzerland,

B Basis of preparation

The Financial Statements are for the year ended 31 December 2020.
These Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with
1AS in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.
The financial statements have been prepared under the historic
cost convention modified by revaluation of financial assets and
financial liabilities hetd at fair value, The Birectors have confirmed
it is appropriate to use the going concern assumption as a basis for
presenting these Financial Statements.

The preparation of Financial Statements in accordance with 1AS in
conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006,
reguires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabitities and disclosure of
contingent liabilities at the date of the Financial Statements and
the reparted amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. The process also requires management to
exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Company's
accounting policies.

Although estimates are based on management’s best knowledge of
current events and actions, actual results ultimately may differ
from those estimates. Further information about critical estimates
and judgements are presented in Note 1.

The Company's presentation currency is British Pounds (GBP) which is
the functional currency of the Company. Numbers are stated in
thousands of Pounds Sterling {(£'000).

C Consolidation

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption afforded by
Section 401 of the Companies Act 2006 in not preparing
cansolidated Financial Statements. The Company is a wholly owned
subsidiary of EFGI, a limited liability company incorporated and
domiciled in Switzerland, EFGI prepares consolidated Financial
Statements {0 31 December each year in accordance with 1FRS and
the IFRIC interpretations. The Company’s main subsidiaries are
documented in note 14.

D Accounting Developments

The following new or updated standards are effective for the year
ended 31 December 2020 but do not have a material impact on the
Company's financial statements:

- Definition of Material Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS §;

- Definitien of a Business {(Amendments to IFRS 3);

- COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions {Amendments to IFRS 16};

- Revisions to the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting.

The following accounting standard has been issued by the IASB but
is not yet effective:

Amendments retating to Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
{"IBOR" reform phase 2)

The requirements of IFRS 9, IAS 39 IFRS 7, IFRS & and IFRS 16 were
amended effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
with the Company not opting to early adopt. The objective of the
amendments is {0 provide temporary exceptions from applying '
specific hedge accounting requirements during the period of

uncertainty resulting from interest rate benchmark reform. The
emain amendments can be summarised as follows:

IBGR reform Phase 2 includes several reliefs and additional
disclosures. The reliefs apply upon the transition of a financial
instrument fram an IBOR to a risk-free-rate (RFR).

Changes to the basis for determining contractual cash flows as a
result of interest rate benchmark reform are required as a practical
expedient to be treated as changes to a floating interest rate,
provided that, for the financial instrument, the transition from the
IBOR benchmark rate to RFR takes place on an economically
equivalent basis.

IBOR reform Phase 2 provides temporary reliefs that allow the
Company's hedging relationships to continue upon the replacement
of an existing interest rate benchmark with an RFR. The reliefs
require the Company to amend hedge designations and hedge
documentation. This includes redefining the hedged risk to
reference an RFR, redefining the description of the hedging
instrument and / or the hedged item to reference the RFR and
amending the method for assessing hedge effectiveness. Updates
to the hedging documentation must be made by the end of the
reporting period in which a replacement takes place. For the
retrospective assessment of hedge effectiveness, the Bank may
etect on a hedge by hedge basis to reset the cumulative fair value
change to zero. The Bank may designate an interest rate as a non-
cantractually specified, hedged risk component of changes in the
fair value or cash flows of a hedged item, provided the interest rate
risk component is separately identifiable, eg, it is an established
benchmark that is widely used in the market to price loans and
derivatives. For new RFRs that are not yet an established
benchmark, relief is provided from this requirement provided the
Bank reasonabily expects the RFR to become separately identifiable
within 24 months. Fer hedges of groups of items, the Bank is
required to transfer to subgroups those instruments that reference
RFRs. Any hedging relationships that prior to application of IBOR
reform Phase 2, have been discontinued solely due to iBOR reform
and meet the gualifying criteria for hedge accounting when IBOR
reform Phase 2 is applied, must be reinstated

upon initial apptication.

1. Critical accounting estimates and judgements in
applying accounting policies
in the process of applying the Campany’s accounting policies, the
Company’s management makes various judgements, estimates and
assumptions that may affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities recognised in the Financial Statements in future periods.
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. The Company made the fotlowing critical estimates
in the year:

{a) Expected credit loss allowance
The measurement of the expected credit toss (“ECL") allowance for
financial assets measured at amortised cost and fair vatue through
Other Comprehensive income {"FVOCI") is an area that requires the
use of complex models and significant assumptions about future
econoemic conditions and credit behaviour (e.g, the tikelihood of
customers defaulting and the resulting losses). Exptanation of the
inputs, assumptions and estimation techniques used in measuring
the ECL are further detailed in note 27.3.1, which alse sets out the
key sensitivities of the ECL to'changes in these etements.
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1. Critical accounting estimates and judgements in
applying accounting policies {continued}

Several judgements are also reguired in applying the accounting

requirements for measuring the ECL, such as:

- determining the criteria for significant increase in credit risk
("SICR™);

- choosing appropriate models and assumptions for the
measurement of ECL;

- establishing groups of similar financial assets for the purposes of
measuring the ECL.

(a} Income taxes and deferred tax

Significant estimates are required to determine current and
deferred tax assets and Habilities. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. This will include judgement
of the amount of tax payable on open tax computations where the
liabilities remain to be agreed with HMRC, Due to the uncertainty
associated with such tax items it is possible that at a future date,
on conclusion of any open tax matters, the outcome may vary
significantly. '

A deferred tax asset is recognised for the carry-forward of unused
tax losses to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the unused tax losses ¢an be
utilised. To the extent that it is not probable that taxabte profit wiil
be available against which unused tax losses can be uiilised, the

" deferred tax asset is not recognised.

Qur tax provision includes an estimate of taxation payabte relating
to previous years as a result of an ongoing HMRC investigation. This
estimate includes several assumptions reflecting discussions to
date but assumes that the investigation is settled based on an
averall agreed position. A 10% increase in this position would resuit
in additional tax payable of GBP 0.6 mitlion.

2. Principal accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the
Financial Statements are disciosed betow, but where possible, they
have been shown as part of the Note to which they specifically
relate. These policies have been consistently applied to all the
years presented, unless otherwise stated.

{a) Foreign currencies.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in fareign currencies
have been translated into the functional currency at the market
rates of exchange ruling at the Balance Sheet date and exchange
differences are accounted for in the income Statement.

Foreign currency transactions are trafslated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions, Foreign éxchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the transtation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabikities denominated
in foreign currencies are recognised in the Income Statement,
except when deferred in equity a5 qualifying cash flow hedges.

Translation differences on non-monetary items {treasury shares}
are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss and are included
in the fair value reserve in equity.

{b) Revenue {where the policy not disclosed in a specific
note)

(i) bividend income

Dividend income represents gross dividends from investments
(principally in subsidiary tompanies) and is recognised when the
Company's right to receive payment is established.

(i) Nettrading income and foreign exchange gains and
losses

Net trading income comprises results from foreign exchange

transactions and revaluation of assets and liabilities denominated

in ather currencies, including the mark to market of interest rate

swaps and currency forwards and swaps; plus, any gain or loss from

financial instruments measured at fair value.

(iii) Gains less 1osses on disposal of financial assets

Gains less losses on disposat of financial assets are recorded when
the risks and rewards of financial assets measured under IFRS 9 are
transferred to another party in exchange for consideration. The gain
or loss represents the difference between the consideration
received and the carrying value of the financial asset and is
recognised at the point in time where the risks and rewards from
the financial assets are transferred. For assets held at FvOCI this
includes the recycling of gains or losses previously recognised in
other comprehensive income to the income statement.

{¢) Financial assets and liabilities

Al financial assets are recorded on the day the transaction is
undertaken. Purchases and sales of financial assets at fair value or
amortised cost are recognised on the date on which the Company
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Loans and advances 1o
customers are recognised when cash is advanced to the borrowers.

Measurement methods:

Amortised cost and effective interest rate

Amartised cost is the value at which the financiat asset or financial
Hability is measured at initial recognition minus the principal
repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the
effective interest method of any difference between that initial
value and the maturity value and, for financial assets, adjusted for
any loss atlowance, '

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected
life of the financial asset or financial liability to the gross carrying
value of a financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial
liability. The calculation does not consider ECE and inctudes
transaction costs, premiums or discounts and fees paid or received
that are ihtegral to the effective interest rate, such as origination
fees. For credit-impaired financial assets the Company calcuiates
the credit-adjusted effective interest rate, which is calculated based
on the amortisad cost of the financial asset-instead of its gress
“carrying value and incorporates-the impact of ECL in estimated
future cash flows.
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2. Principal accounting policies

When the Company revises the estimates of future cash flows, the

carrying value of the respective financial asset or financial liability
is adjusted to reflect the new estimated discount using the original
effective interest rate. Any changes are recognised in profit or loss.

Initiat recognition and measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset or
financial liability at its fair value. In case of a financiaf asset or
financial liability subsequently not measured at Fair Value Through
Profit ar Lass {*FYTPL"), transaction ¢osts that are incremental and
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial
asset or financial liabitity, such as fees and commissions are
included at fair value at initial recognition. Transaction costs of
financiat assets and financial liabilities carried at FYTPL are
expensed as incurred.

Immediately after initial recognition, an expected credit loss (“ECL"}
is recognised for financial assets measured at amortised cost and
investments in debt instruments measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FYOCI"}, which results in an
accounting loss being recognised in profit or loss when an asset is
newly osiginated.

Business models: The business model reflects how the Company
manages the assets in order to generate cash flows. That is, whether
the Company's objective is solely to coltect the contractuatl cash
flows from the assets or is to collect both the contractual cash flows
and cash flows arising from the sale of assets, if neither of these is
applicable (e.g. financial assets are held for trading purposes}, then
the financial assets are classified as ‘other” business model and
measured at FVIPL. Factors considered by the Company in
determining the business model for a group of assets include past
experience on how the cash flows for the assets were collected, how
the asset's performance is evaluated and reported to key
management personnel, how risks are assessed and managed and
how management are compensated.

Solely Payments of Principal and Interest {"SPPI"): Where the
business model is to hold assets to cotlect contractual cash flows or
to collect contractual cash flows and sell, the Company assesses
whether the financial instrument's cash flows represent SPPI. In
making this assessment, the Company considers whether the
contractual cash flows are consistent with a basic lending
arrangement, ie. interest includes only consideration for the time
vatue of money, credit risk, other basic lending risks and a profit
margin that is consistent with a basic lending arrangement. Where
the contractual terms introduce exposure to risk or volatility that are
inconsistent with a basic lending arrangement, based on qualitative
or guantitative criteria, the retated financial asset is classified and
measured at FVTPL.

Further detail on the accounting policies for financial assets held at
FVOCi and amortised cost are contained in Notes 12 and 13.

Fair Value Through Profit or Loss

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or
FVOCI are measured at FYTPL. Other mavements in the fair value (for
example from interest rate or credit risk changes) whick are not part

of a hedging relationship, are presented in the Income Statement
within ‘fair value gains less losses on financial instruments
measured at fair value’ in the period in which they arise,

Impairment

On a forward-looking basis, the Company assesses the ECL

associated with debt instrument assets carried at amortised cost and

EVOCI and with the exposure arising from loan commitments and

financial guarantee contracts. The Company recognises an ECL for

such losses at each reporting date. The measurement of £CL reflects:

- an unbiased and probability-weighted value that is determined by
evaluating a range of possible outcomes;

- the time value of money;

- reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort at the reporting date about past events,
current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

Further detail is provided in Note 27.

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
liabilities, financial guarantees contracts and loan
commitments

In both the current and prior period, financial liabilities are classified

as subsequently measured at amortised cost, except for;

- financial liabilities at FVTPL: this classification is applied to
derivatives, financial liabilities held for trading (e.g. short positions
in the trading booking). Gains or losses on financial liabilities
designated at FVTPL are presented partially in  Other
Comprehensive Income (the value of change in the fair value of
the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the
Company's credit risk of that liability, which is determined as the
value that is not attributable to changes in market conditions that
give rise to market risk) and partially profit or loss (the remaining
value of change in the fair value of the liability). This is untess such
a presentation would create, or enlarge, an accounting mismatch
in which case the gains and losses attributable to changes in the
credit risk of the liability are also presented in the profit or loss;

- financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments: Financiat
guarantee contracts are initially measured at fair value and
subsequently measured at the higher of the expected credit loss
value; the premium received on initial recognition less income
recognised in accordance with the principals of IFRS 15. Loan
commitments provided by the Company are measured as the
value of the expected loss allowance. For loan commitments and
financial guarantee contracts, the loss allowance is recognised as
a provision. If the contract includes both a loan and an undrawn
commitment and the expected credit toss on the undrawn
commitment cannot be separated from the loan component, the
expected credit loss on the undrawn commitment is recognised
together with the foss allowance for the loan. If the combined
expected credit loss exceeds the carrying amount of the loan, the
excess is recognised as a provision,

Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities

A financiat asset, or a portion thereof, ts derecognised when the
contractual rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired, or when they have been transferred and either (i) the
Company transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership, or (i) the Company neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and the
Company has not retained control. In case of modification of loans
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when the Company renegotiates or otherwise modifies the
contractual cash flows of a loan, it assesses whether or not the new
terms are substantially different from the original terms,
considering a range of factors that include reduction in cash flows
when the borrower is expected to be able to pay, new substantial
terms are introduced, extension of the loan term, changes in
interest rate and currency or insertion of collaterals or credit
enhancement facilities. If terms are substantially different after the
modification, the Company derecognises the original financial asset
and recognises a new asset at fair value, recalculating a new
effective interest rate for the asset. If the terms of the modified
asset are not substantially different, the asset is not derecognised,
but the Company creates new cash flows, resulting in a
modification gain or loss.

A financial liability is derecognised when extinguished {i.e. the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or
expiras). In case of modification of terms of financial liabilities, the
Company extinguishes the current tiability and recognises a new

3 Net interest income

liabitity only if the modification is considered a substantial
modification of the terms (i.e. if the discounted present value of the
cash flows under the new terms, including any fees paid net of any
fees received and discounting using the original effective interest
rate, is at least 10% different from the discounted present value of
the remaining cash flows of the ariginal financial liability). Any
costs or fees incurred are recognised as part of the gain or loss on
the extinguishment if the modification is accounted for as an
extinguishment. Otherwise, costs and fees incurred adjust the
carrying amount of the liability and are amaortised over the
remaining term of the modified liability.

. {(a) Other reserves

This reserve comprisés amounts taken to equity in respect of
share-based payments, revaluations of outright bonds, hedged
bonds, hedging swaps and treasury shares held at fair value
through other comprehensive income,

Accounting Policy

Interest income and expenses are recognised in the Income Statement for all interest-bearing instruments on an accrual basis, using the
effective interest method. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through
the expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount of the financiat asset or
financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates cash flows considering ail contractual terms of the
financial instrument but does not consider future credit losses. The calculation includes all amounts paid or received between parties to
[the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs, and any other premiums or discounts. Negative
[interest on assets is recorded as an interest expense, and negative interest on liabilities is recorded as interest income.

For financial assets at amoftised cost or debt instruments at FYOCH in stage 3, the eriginal effective interest rate is applied to the amortised

cost of the asset rather than to the gross carrying amount.

2020 2019

GBP ‘000 GBP ‘000

Banks and customers 49,235 61,840
Financial assets at FVTPL 629 6,181
financial assets at FYOC| 14,569 27,436
Totat interest income 64,433 95,457
Banks and customers - {15,510) (37,282)
Financial liabilities at FVTPL (66) (60)
financial liabilities at FVOQ) (7.301) (8,072)
Total interest expense (2287 {45,414)
Met interest income 41,556 50,043
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4, Net fee and commission income

Accounting Policy

IIThe Company earns investment management fees from the provision of banking, wealth management & planning services and incurs
[corresponding expenses. Where services are provided to customers on an ongoing basis and the performance obligations satisfied over
time, the fees are recognised over that time period in line with the agreed fee rates. Where services are provided in relation to a specific
?ndividual transaction the performance obligations are satisfied at a point in time and the fees are recognised at that point. Where these
fees and expenses are recognised in advance of billing they are included as accrued income. Fees and commissions relating to trading
activity and foreign exchange transactions are recognised at the time the underlying transactions are completed,

2020 2019

GBP ‘000 GBP "000

Banking fees and commission income 16,848 6812

Wealth management fees and commission income 43016 40,338

Banking fee and commission income 59,864 47,150

Brokerage and other fees and commission expense (3731) (3.230)

Net fee and commission income ' 56,133 43920
5. Operating expenses

2020 2019

Note GBP 000 GBP ‘000

Staff costs 6 (71,062) (67.274)

Administrative expenses (30,395) (22,185)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 15 (‘u.3_11) (4,654)

Amortisation of intangible assets 16 (563) (427)

Operating expenses (106,311) {94,540)

6.  Staff costs

2020 2019

Note GBP ‘000 GBP 000

Wages, salaries and staff bonuses {56,212) (53,670)

Social security costs (7,615) (6,202)

Pension costs {2.785) (2,547)

Share options granted to directors and employees 2 {4,430) {4,155)

Staff costs {n,042) (67274)

As at 31 December 2020 the number of full-time equivalent employees of the Company was 368 (2019: 384), 8 full-time equivalent
employees are located in Jersey, with the remaining 350 full-time equivalent employees located in the United Kingdom,

The Company operates defined contribution pension plans for employees. The Company pays contributions to privately administered
pension plans and has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are recognised as

employee benefit expenses when they are due.
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" Details ofthe remuneratmn of D|rec£ors who served durmg the year are as: foliows

EFG Private Bank Limited

7. Diregter_s;’;rernuneration

2020 ...2019

) __The highest pand Durector exercised no share opuons durmg 2020 (2019 361 183) No d|rectors had retirement benefts are accrumg under
i3 money purchase scheme{zmg nll)

8. . AUd!tOI"S remuneratnon

2020° - 2019

R : : . GBP 600 ’ EGBP 000
. short-term employment benefits - S ' _ 2,307 2708
: ‘Share-based payments L S oL 441, 500
Pension payments . ' . T Jlgr L 189
Number of Directors’ éwarded share options . o o 3 R
. Numberof Directors exercising share options o ’ S o2 S22
Highesf p'a'id'Dir'ector . L .
Short-term-empldymént benefits o o Co 606 641
‘Share-based payments . DL S . o o 203 330
. ‘Pensicn contributions T S oo B .64 81
Total 7T o o S 873 1052

: S L . : : GBP000 - GBP'000
: --.-Fees payable forthe aud1t of the Company pursuantto leguslatuon‘ - L : oL 44 - 28
-Otherser\rlces pursuant to such leglslatlon2 RN SR o - :;16.. '
" Other sérvices® . . R ‘ T - . 27

Total . R B S 689 . .. ' 508

©.._.1Comprises the fees for the statutory audit ofthe Company..

2 Compnses the fees fur the mtenm prafit venfcatmn
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9.  Income tax

2020 2019

GBP 000 GBP ‘000

Current year tax credit 773 -
Foreign tax charge (138) (387)
Adjustments for current tax of prior periods . {642} {5.083)
& {5,470)
Deferred tax - Current year ' 562 492
Deferred tax - Adjustments for prior periods 134 97
Total income tax credit / (charge) 689 (4,881}

The tax on the Company's-profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the enacted tax rate, as follows:

Profit before tax 10,587 16,899
Tax at the applicable rate of 19% (2011) {3.209)
Tax effect of;
Non-taxabte income 1.868 2,413
Nor-aliowable expenses (384) (279)
Adfustments for current tax of prior periods (508) (4,9886)
Deferred tax and rate differences 350 33N
Stock options 67 760
AT1 Interest {appropriation of earnings) 1032 1,097
Jersey branch profit 124 -
QOther items 3 1% {(1,008)
Total income tax credit / {charge) 689 (4,887)

The prior year tax adjustment in 2020 is related to the under provision of tax relating to 2019 and 2018. The 2019 prior year tax adjustment
includes an estimate of amounts payable in relation to the ongoing HMRC investigation. The estimate reflects the current status and may
change as discussions with HWRC progress.
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10. Cash and cash equivalents

Accounting Policy

Cash and cash eguivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, shori-term deposits and other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less, and bank drafts, For the purpose of the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash
equivalents comprise the following balances with tess than 90 days maturity.

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

GAP 0600 © GBP ‘000

Cash and balances with central banks

Cash in hand 202 349
Balances with central banks ) 791131 633,676
Total cash and balances with central banks ’ 791333 634,025
Due from other banks

At sight . 89.013 54,312
At term 18,284 -
Total due from other banks ' 107,297 54,312
Total cash and cash equivalents 893,630 688,337
Pledged due from other banks 22,767 3,051

1. Derivative financial instruments

Accounting Policy

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised in the Balance Sheet at fair value on the date on which the derivative contract is
lentered and are subsequently re-measured at their fair vajue. Fair values are obtained from quoted market prices, including recent
fmarket transactions, distounted cash flow models and option pricing models. as appropriate. All derivatives are carried as assets when
fair value is positive and as liabilities when fair value is negative,

'The best evidence of the fair value of a derivative al initial recognition is the transaction price (i.e. the fair value of the consideration
given or received) unless the fair value of that instrument is derived from its comparison with other observable current market
transactions in the same instrument (i.e. without modification or repackaging) or based on a valuation technique whose variables include
lonly data from observable markets.

Hedge accounting is used for derivatives designated as such, provided certain criteria are met. The Company documents, at the inception
[of the transaction, the relationship between hedged instrument and hedging instruments, as well as its risk management objective and
rstrau:_'gy for undertaking various hedge transactions, The Company alse documents its assessment, both at hedge inception and on an
lengoing basis, as well as upon a significant change in the circumstances affecting the hedge effectiveness requirements, of whether a
hedging relationship meets the hedge effectiveness requirements.

Interest income and expense on derivatives designated as hedging instruments in effective hedge relationships is included in net
interest income. The Company will discontinue hedge accounting in the following scenarios:

- when the Company determines that a hedging relationship no longer meets the risk management objective;

- when the hedged instrument or the hedging instrument expires, is sold or terminated;

- when the economic relationship between the hedge item and the hedging instrument ceases to exist;

— when the credit risk effect starts to dominate the value changes that result from that economic relationship;

- when the forecasted hedged transaction is no longer probable.
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1. Derivative financial instruments (continued)

.rAccounting Policy (continued)

{i) Fair value hedge

:Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in the Income Statement,
together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that are attributable to the hedged risk. If the hedge no {onger
:meets the criteria for hedge accounting, the adjustment to the carrying amount of a hedged instrument, for which the effective interest
method is used, is amortised 1o the Income Statement over the period to maturity.

(ii} Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is recognised in
Other Comprehensive Income. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the Income Statement.
Amounts accumulated in Other Comprehensive Income are recycled to the Income Statement in the periods in which the hedged
instrument will affect profit or loss (for example, when the forecast transaction that is hedged takes place). When a hedging instrument
expires or is sold, or when & hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or (0ss existing in equity at
that time remains in equity and is recognised when the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised in the Income Statement. When a
forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that was reporied in equity is immediately transferred to
the Income Statement.

(iii) Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting
Certain derivative instruments do not qualify for hedge accounting, Changes in the fair value of any derivative instrument that do not
|qualify for hedge accounting are recognised immediately in the income Statement.

1.1 Derivatives
The Company's credit risk represents the potential cost to replace the forward or swap contracts if counterparties fail to perform their
obligation. This risk is monitored on an ongoing basis with reference to the current fair value, a proportion of the notional amount of the
contracts and the liquidity of the market. To control the level of credit risk taken, the Company assesses counterparties using the same
techniques as for its lending activities. The notional amounts of financial instruments provide a basis for comparison, but de nat indicate
the amount of future ¢ash flows, or the current fair value of the underlying instruments. Accordingly, they do not indicate the Company's
exposure to credit or price risks. The derivative instruments become favourable {assets) or unfavourable (liabilities) as a result of
fluctuations in market interest rates, credit spreads or foreign exchange rates, relative to their terms. The fair values of derivative
financial assets and liabilities can fluctuate signiftcantly from time to time. The fair values of derivative instruments held are set out in
the following table:

31 December 2020 31 December 2019
Contract/ Contract/
notional  Fair values Fair values notional Fair values Fair values
amount Assets Liabilities amount Assets Liabilities
GBP 000 GBP "000 GBP 000 GBP ‘000 GBP'000 GBP'000
Derivatives held for trading
Foreign exchange derivatives 2,276,114 9,207 (26,238) 1,864,644 17,564 (15,952)
Interest rate swaps 29,795 1 (215} - - -
Total derivative assets/liabilities held for trading 2,305,909 9208 {26,453} 1,864,644 17,564 {15,952)
Derivatives held for hedging
Derivatives designated as fair value hedges
Interest rate swaps 321,985 192 (1,040} 392,874 945 {(6,297)
Derivatives designated as cash flow hedges
interest rate swaps - - - 12,867 21 {136)
Total derivative assets/liabilities held for hedging 321,985 192 (11,040} 405,741 966 (6,433)
Total derivative assets/liabilities 2,627,894 9,400 (37,493} 2,270,385 18,530 (22,385)
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EFG Private Bank Limited

13.  Loans and advances to customers

Accounting Policy

Loans and advances to customers are held at amortised cost. That is, the initial fair vaiue {which is normally the amount advanced or
borrowed) is adjusted for repayments, fees and expenses to represent the effective interest rate of the asset or liability. Balances
deferred on-balance sheet as effective interest rate adjustments are amortised to interest income over the life of the financial
instrument to which they retate.

To be measured at amortised cost, financial assets must be held in a business model to collect the contractual cash flows and contain
contractual terms that give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest.

In determining whether the business model is a *hold 1o collect” model, the objective of the business model must be to hold the financial
asset to collect contractual cash flows rather than holding the financial asset for trading or short-term profit taking purposes. While the
objective of the business model must be to hold the financial asset to collect contractual cash flows this does not mean the Company is
required to hold the financial assets until maturity. When determining if the business model objective is 1o collect contractval cash flows
the Company will consider past sales and expectations about future sales. There is a portfolio of loans, totalling £393 million (2019: 310
million), which are available to be securitised to Chestnut Il Martgage Financing |1 plc. The Directors consider amortised cost to
approximate fair value,

31 December 2020 31 December 2079

GBP ‘000 GBP ‘000
Mortgages 1,437,360 1,127,460
Other loans 742,527 658,861
Gross loans and advances 2,179,887 1,786,321
Less: Loss allowance (1.587) (1,778)
Loans and advances to customers 2,178,300 1,784,543

14, Investment in subsidiary undertakings

The following is a listing of the Company's subsidiaries at 31 December 2020: -

Non- 31 December 31December

Line of Country of Ownership controlling 2020 2019
Name business incorporation % interest % GBP ‘000 GBP '000
Private Asset Management Limited Dormant United Kingdom 100% 0% - -
Harris Allday Limited Dormant United Kingdom 100% 0% - -
PBTC Nominees Limited Dormant United Kingdom 100% 0% - -
HALB Nominees Limited Dormant United Kingdom 100% 0% - -
The Private Bank and Trust Company Limited Dormant United Kingdom 100% 0% - -
EFG Cyprus timited tnvestment Cyprus

Management 100% 0% 45 -
EFG Private Bank Limited, lersey Branch* Banking Jersey 100% 0% - -
EFG Private Bank {Channel Islands) Limited Banking Guernsey 100% 0% 10,000 10,000
Private Bank and Trust Company {Guernsey) Limited** Banking Guernsey 100% 0% - -
EFGIG Nominees Limited** Dormant Guernsey 100% 0% - -
"81‘;::‘ o::::: s:rt':\;al&lseia?er;ko??;éegmate Bank (Channel Islands) Limited 10'01'.5 10,000

The accounting reference date for all companies is 31 December, During the year a new subsidiary was incorporated in Cyprus with GBP
45,000 of share capital. EFG Cyprus Limited is an investment manager, regulated by the Cyprus Securities and £xchange Commission. All
other subsidiary holdings are unchanged from 31 December 2019.
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15, Property, plant and equipment

ACco unting Policy

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses and is periodically
reviewed for impairment, with any impairment charge being recognised immediately in the Income Statement. Depreciation is calculated
using the straight-line method to write down the cost of property, plant and equipment, to their residual values over their estimated
useful life. The useful life of each identified class of asset is as follows; buildings and leasehold improvements: the remaining life of the
[lease {maximum 15 years), computter hardware; 3-& years, furniture and equipment: 4-10 years, antiques and artwork: 50 years,

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in other operating
expenses in the Income Statement.

Premises leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset at the date at which the leased asset is available for use by the Company, Right-
of-use assets are measured ai cost comprising the following:

L the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability,

- any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, tess any lease incentives received;

- any initial direct costs,

Right of use Antiques & Leasehold Furpiture and Computer
assets artwork improvemerits equipment hardware Total

GBP 000 GBP ‘000 GBP 000 GBP 000 GBP ‘000 GBP ‘000
At 1 January 2019 . - .
Cost 13,797 592 4,887 2,808 5,704 27.788
Accomutated depreciation _ - (221) (3,420) (2.720) (5136) (Ma497)
Nét book vatue at 1 January 2019 13.797 3n 1467 88 568 16291
Additions 220 - b/ 120 395 1,512
Depreciation charge for the year (3.587) (2) {571) (45} . (439) {4.654)
Disposal and write-offs - . (28) - {54) (82
Net book value at 31 December 2019 10,430 ’ 359 1,645 163 470 13,067
At 31 December 2019
Cost 14,017 592 5,636 2928 6,045 3218
Accumulated depreciation {3.587) {233) (3.991) (2.765) {5.575) {16,151)
Net book value at 31 December 2019 10,430 358 1,645 163 470 13,067
Additions 268 - 4 26 178 476
Reclassification within the company - (103) - . 103 - -
Depreciation charge for the year (3519) (1) {368} {97} {315} {4.31)
Net book value at 31 December 2020 7379 244 1,281 195 333 9232
At 31 Decemnber 2020
Cost 14,285 489 5,640 3,057 6223 29,694
Accumulated depreciation {7.108) {245) {4.359) (2,862} {5,890} {20,462)
Net book value at 31 December 2020 7179 244 1281 195 333 9,232
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16. Intangible assets

Accounting Policy

Computer software and licences are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. It is periodically reviewed for
nmpalrment, with any impairment charge being recognised in the Income Statement Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line
method over a 5-year basis. The acquisition cost of software capitalised is based on the cost to acquire and bring into use the specific
software.

31 Decernber 2020 31 December 2019
Computer Computer
software and licences software and licences
GBP 000 GBP 000

Opening net book value
Cost 2,362 2,205
Accumulated amortisation and impairment (829) (402)
Net book value 1,533 1.803
Acquisition of computer software and licences 289 157
Amortisation charge for the year {563) (427)
Closing net book value 1,259 1533
Cost 2,651 2,362
Accumulated amortisation and impairment {1,392 (829)
Net book value 1,259 1,533

17.  Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Accounting Policy

Deferred income tax is provided, using the liability method, on alt temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
}liabiliiies and their carrying values for financial reporting purposes, using the enacted UK Corporation tax rate of 19% (2019; 17%).
Deferred tax is measured using substantively enacted rates which are expected to apply when the temporary difference reverses. The
rprincipal temporary differences arise from goodwill impairment, property, plant and equipment depreciation, stock options, and
irevaluation of certain financial assets and liabilities, including derivative instruments,

Deferred tax assets are only recognised {0 the extent that it is probable that they will be recovered in the future. Deferred tax relating to
changes in fair values of financiat assets classified as FYQCI is charged or credited directly to Other Comprehensive Income and is
subsequently recognised in the Income Statement together with the deferred gain or toss.

Income tax payable on profits, based on the enacted or substantively enacted tax law where relevant, is recognised as an expense in the
peruod in which profits arise. The tax effects of income tax losses available for carry forward are recognised as an asset when it is
Iprobable that future taxable profits will be available against which these losses can be utilised. The Company recognises interest on late
ipaid taxes plus any penalties, if applicable, as part of operating expenses o provisions in the Income Statement, depending on
circumstances, Deferred income tax assets and liabilities comprise the following:
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17. Deferred tax assets and liabilities {(continued)

1 December 2020

31 December 2018

GBP '000 GBP 000
Deferred income tax assets 4112 3,699
Deferred income tax liabilities - -
Net deferred income tax assets 4112 3,699
The movement on the net deferred income tax account is as follows:
AL 1 January 3,699 3,457
Credit L0 Income Statement 697 590
{Charge) to equity {284) {348)
At 31 December £112 3.699
Analysis of deferred taxation balance;
Fixed assets 39 62
tntangible assets 2,130 1,712
Stock options 1,686 1,627
Tax losses 172 240
Other 85 58
Deferred income tax assets 4,112 3,699

A potential deferred asset of GBP 1,282,178 {2019: GBP 1,134,000} arising on unrelieved capital tosses carried forward of GBP 6,748,307 has
not been recognised in Lhe Financial Statements as it uncentain whether the Company will generate sufficient capital gains in future

periods 10 utilise the asset

The Chancellor announced on 3 March 2021 that the rate of corporation tax paid on the company profits will increase from 19% to 25%
with effect from 1 April 2023, The newly announced 25% tax rate was included in the Finance Bill 2021 which was published on 11 March
2021, As the rate is not substantively enacted at 31 December 2020, this increase does not affect the amounts of current or deferred
income taxes recognised. The impact to net deferred tax assets would have been an increase of GBP 1,014,000 at 31 December 2020 had it

been enacted.

18. Other assets

Accounting Policy

‘Assets, other than those specifically accounted for under a separate policy, are stated at their cost less impairment cost. Financial assets
are recognised at amortised cost in accordance with IFRS 9, which includes the requirement to calculate expected credit losses on initial
recognition.

31 December 2020 31 Decémber 2019

G8P ‘000 - GBP 000
Prepaid expenses and accrued income 41,506 12,252
Settlement balances 5,632 8,699
Other receivables . . 6541 . . . 31,760

Other assets ‘ 53679 ‘ 52,711
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19.  Due to other banks

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

GBP ‘000 GBP ‘000
Due to other banks at sight 85813 113,969
Due to other banks at term 441,776 437,985
Due to other banks 527,589 551,954

20. Due to customers

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

GBP 000 GBP '000
Current accounts 1,694,977 998,875
Term deposits 1,320,288 1,600,051
Due to customers 3,015,265 2,598,925
21, Provisions
[Accounting Policy
Provisions are recognised when:
- the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
- it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation;
- reliable estimates of the amount of the obligation can be made.

Provision for ditapidations QOther provisions Total
GBP Q00 GBP 000 GBP ‘000

At 31 December 2019 77 1,591 2,368
Expected payment within 12 months - 1,541 .. 1541
Expected payment thereafter 777 50 . 827
At 31 December 2019 777 1,591 2368
Movement through profit or loss - (21) )
Provisions utilised - - -
At 31 December 2020 ) o 777 1,570 2,347
Expected payment within 12 months - 1,570 1570
Expected payment thereafter 77 - 7
At 31 December 2020 77 1570 t2347

Provision for dilapidations

A dilapidations provision is recognised when there are future obligations relating to the return of leasehold properties 1o their original
condition at the end of the lease term. The provision is based on management's best estimate of the cost of meeting the Company’s
obligations under its lease contracts.

Other provisions
Cther provisions include amounts provided for in relation to ongoing HMRC enquiries. No further information has been provided due to

uncertainties ¢f the amount or timing of those outflows.

No provision has been provided for operational claims / losses and litigation.
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22, Other liabilities

Accounting Policy

Liabilities, other than those specifically accounted for under a separate policy, are stated based on the amounts which are payable in
respect of goods or services received up to the balance sheet date, Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost in accordance
with [FRS 9,

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Note GBP "000 GBP ‘000
Trade creditors 4,810 908
Deferred income and accrued expenses i . 433 35,100
Settlement balances 5588 8,577
Short term compensated absences 802 8
Other liabilities 3478 8,968
Lease liabilities 23 ) 6,365 10692

Total other liabilities 64,374 64,506

23. Lease liabilities

lAccounting Policy

:I’he Company recognises lease liabilities, measured at the present valve of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the lessee’s
relevant incremental borrowing rate. A range of incremental borrowing rates from 2.03% to 2.30% have been used, which vary depending
on the term of the lease. Lease liabilities include the net present value of fixed payments,

All the Company’s [ease liabilities are in relation to property leases. Note 15 includes relevant lease disclosure on the depreciation
charge, additions and carrying amount of right-of-use assets.

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

GBP 000 GBP '000
Amotnts payabte -
Payable within one year 3,669 3819
Payable between one and five years 3477 7,149
Payable ovér five yeais L 166 520
~ Total minimum lease payments ) 7312 11,488
Principal owing . . .
Current liability 2722 3,504
Non-current liability .. ) o 3,643 7188
Total principal owing 6365 - 10,692
Finance charg;es
Interest expense in the period . o m
Interest payments in the period 186 K1
Principal repayment . : 4,736 ’ 3,450
Total lease repayments ' ’ ' 4,922 3,801
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24, Subordinated loans

Accaunting Policy

The Company has borrowed GBP 66,630,000 in additional tier | qualifying subordinated loan from its immediate parent company which it

holds at amortised cost. Accrued interest payments of GBP 291,000 (2019; GBP 288,000) are recognised in addition to the principal amount
outstanding,

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Interest rate % Due dates GBP “000 GBP 000
Additional Tier 1 B.095% p.a. nfa 66,921 66,918
Total subordinated loans 66,921 66,918

The subordinated loan does not have a maturity date. The loan has a fixed interest rate of 8.095% due to reset on 12 December 2022. At
that date the loan will fix at the 5-year GBP Mid-Market Swap Rate plus a margin of 700bps. The loan can be catled by the immediate
parent company after 12 December 2022. The loan contract contains clauses that can force a write down should the capital ratio of the
Company fall below a specified threshold, and / or upon the occurrence of a viability event.

25. Share capital

Accounting Policy

Ordinary shares issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds or fair value received with the excess of the amount received
over nominal value being credited to the share premium account.

Authorised Ordinary  Issued, allotted and Nominal value per  Ordinary shares issued,
Share Capital fully paid ) share allotted and fully paid
Number Number GBP GBP ‘000
At 1 January 2019 190,000,000 159,590,544 0.0 1,596
Shares issued at 3,000,000,056 3,000,000,056 . 0.0 30,000
Shares consolidated™ - - (3,158,404,150) (3,127,994,694) - - . X -
At 31 December 2019 31,595,906 31,595,906 1.00 31,596
At 31 December 2020 31,595,906 3,595,806 1.00 31,596

No share capital was issued, allotted or consolidated during 2020. During 2019 the Company issued and allotted 3,000,000,056 shares at
£0.01 per share to its parent company, £FGI. On 26 June 2019, in accordance with section 618 of the Companies Act 2006, the Company
consolidated its issued ordinary share capital held at £0.01 each to £1.00 each.
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26.  Financial assets and liabilities

261 Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value
IAccounting Policy

The Company classifies its financial instruments measured at fair value according to the following hierarchy:

Level 1: The fair value of financiat instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices at the Balance Sheet date. A
:market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing
service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm's length basis. The
[quoted market price used for financial assets held by the Company is the current bid price. Instruments included in level 1 comprise
IIprimarily of quoted bonds and equity instruments.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the-counter devivatives) is
[determined by using valuation techniques. These.valuation technigues maximise the use of observable market data where it is available
iand rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant inpuls required to fair value an instrument are observable, the
instrument is included in tevel 2. If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is
fincluded in level 3,

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data {unobservable inputs).

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:

L quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments;

- the fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated as the present value of the estimated future cash flows based on observable yield
curves;

- the fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is determined using forward exchange rates at the Balance Sheet date, with the
resulting value discounted back to present value.

Other techniques, such as discounted cash flow analysis, are used to determine fair value for the remaining financial instruments,

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
GBP 000 GBP ‘000 GBP 000 GBP 000
Assets:
At 31 December 2020
Derivative financial instruments - 9,400 - 9,400
Debt instruments 750,004 - - 750,004
Total assets measured at fair value 750,004 9,400 - 759,404
At 31 December 2019
Derivative financial instruments - 18,530 - 18,530
Equity Instruments 434 - - 434
Debt instruments 931,815 - - 931815
Total assets measured at fair value 932249 18,530 950,779
Liabilities:
At 31 December 2020
Derivative financial instruments - 37493 - 37493
Total liabilities measured at fair value - 37,493 - 37,493
At 31 December 2019
Derivative financial instruments - 22,385 - 22,385
Total liabilities measured at fair value - 22,385 - 22,385
Assets less liabilities measured at fair value at 31 December 2020 750,004 {28,093) - 721,91
Assets less liabilities measured at fair value at 31 December 2019 932,249 {3.855) - 928394

There were no transfers between levels in the current year.
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26. Financial assets and liabilities {(continued)

26.2 Financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost
The table betlow summarises the carrying values and fair values of those financial assets and liabilities that were

measured at amortised cost as of 31 December:

Carrying value Fair value Difference
GBP ‘000 GBP 000 ' GBP ‘000
As at 31 December 2020
Financial assets )
Due from other banks (i 107,297 107,153 {144)
Loans and advances to customers ] (ii) 2178300 2,186,540 . 8,240
) 2,285,597 " 2,293,693 8,096
Financial liabilities '
Due io other banks (iii} 527,589 527,232 (357)
Due to customers iii} 3,015,265 3,015,298 3
Subordinated loans {iv) .. 68971 77,385 10,464
. o 3609775 ‘ 3,619,915 10,140
As at 31 December 2019
Financial assets
Due from other banks (i) ' 54,312 54,314 2
Loans and advances to customers ) {ii) 1784543 1,790,818 6,275
- - 1,838,855 1,845,132 6,277
Financial liabilities
Due to other banks iy 551,954 552,243 289
[Due to customers . {iii) 2598926 2,599,172 246
Subordinated loans , (iv) 66,98 81,219 14,301
’ ' ' 3,217,798 3,232,634 14,836

(i) bue from other banks .
Amounts due from other banks include inter-bank placements and items in the course of collection. The fair value of fioating rate

placements, overnight deposits and term deposits with a maturity of less than 90 days is assumed to be their carrying amount as the
effect of discounting is not significant. The fair vatues are within level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

(i) Loans and advances to customers ‘

toans and advances are net of provisions for impairment. The estimated fair value of loans and advances represents the discounted
amount of estimated future cash flows expected to be received up to the next interest reset date. Expected cash flows are discounted at
current market rates to determine fair value. The determined fair values are within tevel 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

(iii} Due to other banks and customers

The estimated fair value of deposits with no stated maturity, which includes non-interest-bearing dep05|t5 is the amount repayable on
demand. Expected cash flows are discounted at current market rates to determine fair value. The determined fair values are within level
2 of the fair value hierarchy.

(iv) Subordinated loans

The estimated fair vatue of loans and advances represents the discounted amount of estimated future cash flows expected to be
received up 1o the next interest reset date. Expected cash flows are discounted at current market rates to determine fair value. The
determined fair values are within level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.
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27.  Credit Risk

Credit risk refers to the possibility that a financial loss will occur as a result of a borrower's or counterparty's deteriorating
creditworthiness and/or inability to meet its finangial obligations. The Company’s primary ¢redit exposures relate to loans coflateralised
by mortgages, cash or by securities portfolios, or to rated financial institutions, sovereigns and corporates.

271 Credit risk management

{a) Loans and advances

A key feature of the credit approval process is a separation hetween the Company's business arigination and credit risk management
activities. Credit requests are initiated by Client Relationship Officers {'CR0Os") and must be supported by a senior member of the Credit
Committee, independent of the CROs. The Company's Credit Committee ensures the implementation of the credit policies and
procedures, as defined by the Board, and approves major client credit related risks. The Credit Administration Department monitors
credit exposures linked to and arising from investment securities, amounts due from banks, and [oans and advances to customers,
against approved limits and pledged collateral. Management is required to understard the background and purpose of each loan {which
is typically for investment in securities, funds, and investment related insurance policies or real estate) as well as the risks of the
underlying collateral of each loan. ’

The Cempany's internal grading system assigns each client credit exposure to one of ten rating categories. The rating assesses the
borrower's repayment ability and the value, quality, liquidity and diversification of the collateral securing the credit exposure. The credit
policy and the nature of the loans ensure that the loan book is of high quality. Consequently, an overwhelming majority of the Company’s
credit exposures are rated within the top three categories. The following table describes the internal definition of different grading levels
{braadiy they follow the risk categories of external rating agencies):

Grading ' Description of grade ~ S&Psrating
1 ) Top Secured by “cash collateral or equivalent” - goed diversification AAA '
2 High Secured by “cash collateral or equivalent” — imperfect diversification Al

3 Very good Secured by “other collateral” A

4 Good Partly secured by “cash collateral or equivalent” BBB

5 Acceptable Unsecured but prime borrower BB

6 Weak Borrower situation/cotlateral value is deteriorating B

7 Poor Conditions of initial credit are no longer being met €CC

8 Unacceptable Interest is no longer being paid - collateral is being held CCtoC

g Potential loss Bank holds illiquid - uncollectible or no collateral D

10 Loss No collaterat or uncollectible collateral D

(b) Debt securities and other bills _
For debt securities and other bills, external credit ratings such as Standard 8 Poor's rating or their equivalents are used by the Company
for managing the credit risk exposures.

27.2  Risk limit control and mitigation policies

Credit loans guaranteed by real estate are treated in conformity with regulation pertaining to examinaticn, valuation and treatment of
credits guaranteed by real estate and with the internal policies and procedures on mortgage lending. All the real estate provided as
collateral will be evaluated at origination by the Credit departments and by external professionals. Further evaluation during the life of
loan will take place as required by the relevant rules and policies.. Mortgage vatuations are reviewed annually using statisticat
(indexation) methods, and larger mertgages are subject to independent valuations every three years.

To qualify as coliateral for a bombard loan, a client’s securities portfolio must generally be well diversified with differing haircuts applied
depending an the type of risk profite and liguidity of the security. Additional haircuts are applied if the loan and the collaterat are not in
the same currency and maturity or diversification criteria are not fully met.

The Credit department monitors credit exposures against approved limits and pledged collateral for the lombard portfolio. If necessary,
they initiate rectification steps. Most collateral is valued daily (but may be valued more frequently during periods of high market
volatility),

The Company's management of exposure to financial institutions is based on a system of counterparty limits which is coordinated at the
EFGH Group level, adapted for the Company's country limits. Limits for exposure to counterparties are granted based upon the Company's
internal analysis. The limits are set and supervised by the relevant Group Committees depending on each counterparty’s S&P or Moady's
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27.  Credit risk {continued}

ratings {with reference to individual and support ratings} and on the counterparty’s total equity. These limits are annuatly reported to the
Company’s Risk Committee. The Company’s other specific areas of consideration and mitigation measures are outlined below.

{a) Collateral

The Company employs a range of policies and practices to mitigate credit risk. The most traditional of these is the taking of security for
credit exposures. The Company implements guidelines on the acceptability of specific classes of collateral for credit risk mitigation. The
principal collaterat types for loans and advances are:

- mortgages over residentiat and to a limited extent commercial property;

- charges over cash balances held with the Company and cash equivalent;

- charges over finandial instruments such as debt securities, equities and funds; and

- bank guaranices.

{b) Derivatives
The Company maintains a regular monitering of market risk exposure induced by over-the-counter derivative trading. The market risk
exposure reflacts the current market value of the exposure and the potential future value of the exposure.

{c) Credit related commitments

Credit retated commitments inctude the following;

- guarantees, forward contracts and standby tetters of credit: these carry the same credit risk as loans;

- tommitments to extend credit: these represent unused portions of autharisations to extend credit in the form of loans, guarantees or
letters of credit. The Company is potentially exposed to loss for an amount equal to the total unused commitments. However,
commitments to extend credit are contingent upon customers maintaining specific credit standards.

Guarantees can be issued, and lines of credit drawn by customers only if they have adequate collateral pledged with the Company. Most
credit facilities would be rated by the Company with an internal grading of 1t0 3.

273 Credit loss measurement

The Company applies the ‘three-stage’ approach introduced by IFRS 9 for impairment measurement based on changes in credit guality
since initial recognition:

- Stage 1: financiat assets that have not experienced a SICR since initiak recognition;

- Stage 2: SICR since initial recognition but not vet deemed to be credit-impaired;

- Stage 3: credit-impaired or payment default.

Financial instruments in Stage 1 have their ECL measured at an amourt equal to the portion of lifetime ECL that results from default
events possible within the next 12 months. Instruments in Stages 2 or 3 have their ECL measured on a lifetime basis.

The ECL is measured on either a 12-month or {ifetime basis depending an whether a SICR has occurred since initial recognition or
whether an asset is considered to be credit-impaired.

Specific ECL measurements have been developed for each type of credit exposure. Generally, the three components of ECL are exposure

at default (“EAD"), probabhitity of default (“PD") and loss given default {“LGD"), defined as follows:

- EAD is based on the amounts the Company expects to be owed at the time of default over the next 12 months or over the remaining
lifetime. For example, for a revolving commitment, the Company includes the current drawn balance plus any further amount that is
expected to be drawn up to the current contractual limit by the time of default, should it occur

~ PD represents the likelihood of a borrower defaulting on their financiat obligation (as per ‘definition of default and credit-impaired’
below), either aver the next 12 months, or over the remaining lifetime of the obligation

- LGD represents the Company's expectation of the extent of loss on a defaulted exposure. LGD varies by type of counterparty, and
availability of coltateral or other credit support. LGD is expressed as a percentage 1oss per unit of EAD. LGD is calculated on a 12-month
or lifetime basis, where 12-month LGD is the percentage of EAD expected to be non-recoverabie if the default occurs in the next 12
months and lifetime LGD is the percentage of EAD expected to be non-recoverable, the default occurs over the remaining expected
lifetime of the loan.

27.3.1 Due from banks and investment securities
This includes all assets that are classified as follows:
- cash and balances with central banks;

- treasury bills and other eligible bills;

- due from other banks; and,

- investment securities classified as FVOCI,
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27.  Credit risk (continued)

Inputs and assumptions

The ECL for all products above is estimated via three components:

- EAD: Depending on the product and on the IFRS9 asset classification; book value for amortised cost assets and purchase value
adjusted for amortisation and discount unwind far assets designated as FYOC);

- PD: Estimated for a 12-month and lifetime period based on external counterparty credit risk rating information (Standard & Poor's
annual global corporate default study and rating transition); and

- LGD: For Stage 1t and Stage 2 assets. 1GD for sovereign, bank and corporate exposure is approximated by an expert judgement aligned
to the credit default swap ISDA market standard that estimates a recovery rate for sovereign exposure of 40%, resulting in 60% LGD. In
case of Stage 3 assets, LGD value is determined on an individual basis for sovereign, bank and corporate expasure.

Estimation technigues

Macroeconomic expectations for sovereign securities and central bank debt are incorporated via their respective rating obtained from
Standard & Poor's as part of their assessment of counterparty credit risk. For banks and corporate counterparties, the PD and related
transition matrices are impacted on the basis of EFGI Group’s macroeconomic expectations.

Significant increase in credit risk

An internal expert panel performs a quarterly assessment to determine if an asset is subject to a SICR. A rapid deterioration in credit
quality triggers an ad-hoc review of the individual asset, In addition to the guantitative SICR test based on changes in the rating agency's
rating for the respective financial instrument, the assessment of the expert panet considers a range of external market information {e.g.
credit default spreads, rating outlook). The assessment of whether there has been a SICR is a relative measure, dependent on an asset's
PO at origination. For assets existing at 1 January 2019, the initial application date of IFRS 9, this informaticn is not generally available.
Consequently, management judgement based upon historical regression analysis has been used to determine a reasonable basis for
estimating the original PD. More detaited analysis of the evolution of lifetime PDs versus initial recognition PDs will be developed for
future reporting periods.

Definition of default
The default is triggered through a payment default on the instrument or any ¢cross-defautt indication from rating agencies.

27.32 Residential an¢ commercial mortgages
This includes assets that are classified within loans and advances ta customers that are predominantly secured
by real-estate collateral.

Inputs and assumptions

Expected credit losses for mortgages is estimated by four components:

~ EAD: the exposure considers contractual repayments, as well as potential drawdown over the lifetime of the toan;

- rank ordering of loans: each loan is assigned to a risk grade based on its credit quatity (i.e. rank order estimation);

- PDis derived from historical transition matrices. To derive forward-tooking default estimates, these matrices are conditioned to the
macroeconomic expectation of the Company: and

- LGD: the loss estimate is calcutated based on the possibility to cure (derived from the transition matrix), as well as toss given loss {LGL)
component. The LGL considers the current LTV and the future recovery value of the underlying collateral. The recovery value depends
an parameters such as valuation haircuts and their volatility, time to sell the collateral, as well as associated selling costs. The house
price development until sale, as well as the effective interest rate aze also considered.

Estimation techniques ‘

Forward-looking macroeconomic effects are incorporated with forecasts on gross domestic product (GDP) growth and house price
development.

The GDP forecasts impact the migration matrices used 1o determine the PD and the probability to cure considered in the LGD. GDP
growth for the United Kingdom is estimated with an explicit forecast for the United Kingdom.

House price developments for the UK are estimated with an explicit forecast for the Lendon area. The house prices impact the LTV ratios
used to cakculate the LGD.

Significant increase in credit risk

SICR for these assets has occurred if any'credit is greater than 30 days past due. Other criteriz used to identify assets with SICR are the
relative detericration in credit quality since origination (for example, by more than one level), also consudenng the internal scorecard
rating and credit watch list status, or if a loan has previcusly been defaulted.
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27.  Credit risk (continued) —— e

During 2020 clients were allowed payment holidays as a direct result of the COVID-19 outbreak. As this was putin place as a result of the
worldwide COVIB-19 pandemic, these payment holidays were not viewed as SICR relating to the specific clients. On resumption of
repayments, we consider any difficuities repaying these loans as SICR.

Definition of default
Mortgages are in default if the credits are greater than 90 days past due. Other criteria used to identify non-performing assets are the
internal scorecard rating, watch list status and individual assessment of the respective counterparty.

27.3.3 Lombard lending

This includes assets that are classified within {oans and advances to customers, including lombard loans and other exposures covered by
financial collaterals.

Lombard loans are loans secured by diversified portfolios of investment securities, and the risk of defauit of the {can is driven by the
valuation of the collateral. The lending decision is not based on ‘traditional lending’ criteria such as affordability and is typically
undertaken by clients with an existing investment portfolio who wish to leverage their portfolio in pursuit of higher investment returns or
for diversification reasons or who have short-term liquidity needs.

Inputs and assumptions

Expected credit losses for lombard lending are estimated with two compenents:

- ECL due to adverse market price movements in the collateral that captures the risk that a shortfall arises when collateral valtues
decrease to a tevel insufficient to cover the respective iombard loan exposure; andg,

- ECL due to a default of a targe single cotlateral position (Top 1 to Top 5) yielding a shorifall for the lombard loan exposure,

Due to the importance of collateral characteristics for lombard lending, asset segmentation has been defined, batancing the need for
high granularity and the manageability of the overall model. Asset ciasses have been distinguished by asset price volatility, credit and
liquidity risk. Asset classes differentiate cash and cash equivalent, bonds, equities, funds, commodities, guarantees, derivatives, real
estates, insurance policies and other assets. Further asset sub-classes consider other relevant characteristics such as investment grade
ar non-investment grade issuance, or country of issuance.

Expected credit losses due Lo adverse market price movements is based on assumptions regarding:
- Loan-to-vatue (LTV) close-out trigger tevels;

- market price volatility of underlying collateral sub-asset class;

- currency mismatch between loan and collateral;

close-out periods;

exposure at close-out considering a credit conversion factor for undrawn lombard credit tines; and .

LGD considering sales cost incurred during coltateral liquidation.

)

Expected credit losses due to a default of a large single collateral position are based on assumptions regarding:
- risk concentrations in top 5 collateral per asset sub-class;

- PD for each sub-asset class based on counterparty risk ratings;

- LGD to assess the collateral value after default;

- LTV close-out trigger levels;

- market price volatility of underlying collateral sub-asset class;

- currency mismatch between loan and collateral;

- ctose-out periods;

- exposure at close-out considering a credit conversion factor for undrawn lombard credit lines; and

- LGD constdering sales cost incurred during collateral liguidation.

Estimation techniques

ECL measurement for lombard toans does not consider the PD of the borrower, this is a difference to the general measurement
approach. The measurement approach for lombard loans calculates the probability that a given loan hits its close-out trigger level, and
conditional on this, its expected positive exposure is then ¢alcutated. This corresponds to an uncovered shortfall which in combination
with the LtGD parameter determines the ECL. For lombard lending, no additional macro-conditioning of variables are necessary as
macroeconomic effects are captured through parameters tike volatility and LTV levels.

Significant increase in credit risk

Credit risk for lombard loans is based an the underlying collaterat. Hence, SICR is driven by the LTV metric for each individual lombard
loan that is at or above the closeout trigger. Stage 2 lombard loans are loans with an LTV above the close-out trigger which according to
policy could have been closed-out, but will be maintained, taking a higher cradit risk.

Annual Report 2020 | 47



EFG Private Bank Limited

27, Credit risk (continued)

During 2020 clients were allowed payment holidays a direct result of the COVID-19 outbreak. As this is an event, in as a whole, pertaining
1o the worldwide COViD-19 pandemic, these payment holidays are not viewed as SICR pertaining to the client specifically. On resumption
of repayments, we consider any difficulties repaying these loans as SiCR.

Definition of default
Lombard toans that were closed-out or have their collateral liquidated, resulting in an actual shortfall, or where liquidation is still in
progress resulting in a potenttal shortfall are considered credit-impaired and classified as Stage 3.

27.3.4 Other loans
This includes assets that are classified within loans and advances to customers that are not lombard loans or morigage loans and
inctudes overdrafts and unsecured lending.

Inputs and assumptions

The ECL for other loans is estimated by four components:

- EAD: the exposure considers centractual repayments, as well as potential drawdown over the lifetime of the loan,

Rank ordering of loans: each loan is assigned to a risk grade based on its credit quality (i.e. rank order estimation);

PDs are derived from historical transition matrices for commercial loans, To derive forward-looking default estimates, these matrices

are conditioned to the macro-economic expectation of the bank Other, non-commercial 1oans, used an adjusted transition matrix that

replicated their historicat default rates due to the insufficient number of historical observations;

- LGD: the loss estimate is calcutated based on the possibility to cure {(derived from the transition matrix), as welf as an LGL componenL
The LGL considers the current LTV level and the future recovery value of the underlying cotiateral, for collateralised or partially
collateralised exposures. Expert-based LGL rates are used for exposures without collateral.

t

Estimation techniques
Forward-locking macroeconomic effects are incorporated with forecasts on GDP growth and house price developments. See residential
and commercial mortgages for detaits in note 27.3.2.

Significant increase in credit rlsk

SICR for theése assets has occurred if any credit is greater than 30 days past due. Other criteria used to identify assets with SICR are the
relative deterioration in credit quality since origination, also considering the internal scorecard rating and credit watch list status, or if a
loan has previously been defaulted.

During 2020 ciients were allowed payment holidays as a direct result of the COVID-19 outbreak. As this was put in place as a result of the
worldwide COVID-19 pandemic, these payment holidays were not viewed as SICR relating to the specific clients. On resumption of
repayments, we consider any difficulties repaying these loans as SICR.

Definition of default
Other loans are in default if they are more than 90 days past due, Other criteria used to identify non-performing assets are the internat
scorecard rating, watch fist status and individual assessment of the respective counterparty.

27.4 Contractual modifications

The Company medifies the terms of loans provided to customers due to commercial renegotiations, or for distressed loans, with a view
of maximising recovery. Such restructuring activities include extended payment term arrangements, payment holidays and payment
forgiveness, Restructuring policies and practices are based on indicators ar criteria which, in the judgment of management, indicate that
payment will mostlikely continue.

The risk of default of such assets after madification is assessed at the reporting date and compared with the risk under the original
terms of initial recognition, when the modification is not substantial and so does not result in derecognition of the originat asset The
Company may determine that the credit risk has significantly improved after restructuring, so that the assets are moved from Stage 3 or
Stage 2 in accordance with the new terms for six consecutive months or more,

275 Write-off poticy

The Company writes off financial assets, in whole ar in part, when it has exhausted all practicat recovery efforts and has concluded there

is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that there is no reasonable expectation of recovery include:

- Ceasing enfarcement activity;

- Where the Company's recovery method is foreclosing on coltateral and the value of the collateral is such that there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering in futl
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27.  Credit risk (continued)

The Company may write-off financial assets that are still subject to enforcement activity. The Company still seeks {0 recover amounts itis
legally owed in full, but which have been partially written off due to no reasonable expectations of full recovery.

27.6 Macro-economic scenario and sensitivity analysis

The £CL results are based on forward-looking projections. These projections consider different macroeconomic scenarios, and a base,
upside and downside scenario are considered. Each scenario (base, downside and upside) has an equal weighting in the projection, for
example, the ECL is the average of the ECL base, ECL down and ECL upside.
The most significant assumptions affecting the ECL are as follows;

- for amounts due from other banks the most significant assumption is workd GDP, given its correlation with counterparties’ business

environment and ability to repay the loans;

- for residential and commercial mortgages: House price index, given the impact it has on mortgage collateral valuations; weighted GDP,
given the correlation with the customer's wealth, as well as the commercial clients business environment, hence in turn their ability to

repay the loans;

- for due from customers - Other loans and lombard lending: Asset volatility, given the impact it has on financial collateral valuations;
weighted GDP, given the correlation with the customers’ wealth, as well as the commercial clients’ business environment, hence in turn

their ability to repay the loans;

- for Mortgages and other loans, the upside and downside ECL scenarios have been applied. For Lombard loans the votatilities have been

doubled for the downside and halved for the upside.

Most significant macro-economic scenario assumptions

201 2022 2023 2024 2025

World GOP growth Base 5.2% 4.2% 38% 3.6% 35%
Upside 6.2% 5.0% 45% 4.1% 39%

- Downside §.2% 3.4% . 32% 3.1% 31%

Weighted GOP growth Base 39% 29% 21% 1.7% 15%
Upside 4,9% 37% 27% 23% 19%

Downside 2.9% 2.1% 1.5% 12% 11%

House Price Index UK {London) Base 1.5% L8% 40% 4.3% 77%
Upside 7.5% 108% 10.0% 10.3% 13.7%

Downside (4.5%) {1.2%) (2.0%) (1.7%) 1.7%

The House Price Index model assumptions are based on London reflecting the main geographic location of mortgage collateral. A
Weighted GDP Growth series model has been used as it is believed to better represent the international nature of the Company's wealthy
clientele rather than a UK GDP series. In addition, the list of changes to the ECL that would result from reasonably possible changes in

the following parameters from the actual assumptions used are below. World GOP is as chosen when it is necessary to better reflect the

economic cycle into the PDs.

31 December 2020

Portfolio Scenario Impact on ECL Scenario  Impact on ECL
Due from Customers — Mortgage & unsecured lending +100 bps GDP (3.3%) -100 bps GOP 35%
+600 bps house -600 bps house
Due from Customers - Mortgage lending price index (16.5%) price index 22.6%
50% 200%
Due from Customers - Lombard & other lending asset volatility (0.8%) asset volatility 312%
31 December 2019
Portfolio Scenarioc  Impact on ECL Scenario  Impact on ECL
Due from Customers - Mortgage & unsecured lending +100 bps GDP (6.2%) -100 bps GOP 6.7%
+600 bps house -600 bps house
Due from Customers - Mortgage lending price index (29.1%) price index 41.0%
50% 200%
Due from Customers — Lombard & other lending asset volatility (20.3%) asset volatility 200%
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27.  Credit risk (continued)

277 Credit risk exposure

The table below summarises the carrying values, credit grades, expected credit loss allowance by stage and fair values of collateral of
those financial assets that were measured at amortised cast (or at FvOQ) as of 31 December:

Total
AAA-AA A BBB-B8 B-C Unrated carrying value
31 December 2020 GBP 000 GBP '000 GBP '000 GBP '000 GBP ‘000 GBP '000
Cash and balances with central banks 791333 - - - - 791333
Due from othér hanks 2,342 103,968 491 - 496 107,297
Loans and advances to customers B43286 1,175,027 60,306 83,520 16,161 2,178,300
Investment securities - FVOCI 750,004 - - - .- 750,004
Total assets as at 31 December 2020 2,386,965 1,278,995 60,797 83,520 16,657 3,826,934
Loan Commitments 74598 103,944 5335 7,388 1430 192,695
Financial Guarantees 3,388 129,108 - - 9,653 142,149
Total 2,464,951 1,512,047 66,132 90,908 27,740 14,1‘61,778
31 December 2019
Cash and balances with central banks 634,025 - - - 634,025
Due from other banks - 54312 - - - 54312
Loans and advances to customers 385,196 1,281,072 69,620 65,732 2,924 1,784,543
Investment securities - FYOCI 917,375 14,874 - - - 932,249
Total asséts és 'at 31 December 2019 1,916,596 1,350,258 69,620 65,732 2,924 3,405,129
Loan Commitments 131474 - - - - 131,414
Financial Guarantees 126,943 - - - - 126,943
Total 2,174,953 1,350,258 69,620 65,732 2,924 3,663,486
ECL Staging
ECL allowance
Fair value of Total carrying Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 |r‘1ctuded in
collateral held value carrying values
31 December 2020 GBP 000 GBP 000 GBP ‘000 GBP '000 GBP 000 GBP ‘000
Cash and balances with central banks - 791333 - - - -
Due from other barks - 107,297 - - -
Leans and advances to customers 4,113,919 2,178,300 135 68 1,384 1,587
Investment securities - FVOCI -~ 750,004 38 T - 38
Total assets as at 31 December 2020 4713919 "3,826934 73 68 1384 1,625
Lean commitments - 192,695 - - - -
Financial guarantges - 142,143 - - - -
Total 4.713,919 4,161,778 73 68 1384 1,625
31 December 2019
Cash and balances with central banks - 634,025 1 - - 1
Due from other banks - 54,312 1_ - - 1
Loans and advances to customers 3,616,946 1,784,543 347 38 1393 1778
Investment securities - FYOC - 932,249 48 - - 48
Total assets as at 31 December 2019 3,615,946 3,405,129 397 38 1393 1,828
Loan commitments - 131,414 - - - -
Financial guarantees . 126,943 - - - -
Total 3,616,946 3,663,486 397 38 1,393 1,828

Maximum exposure te credit risk for cash and balances with central banks is GBP 791,333,000 (2019: GEP 634,025,000}, due from other
banks is £107,297,000 (2019: £54,312,000), loans and advances to customers is GBP 2,178,300,000 (2019; 1,784,543,000) and investment
securities is £750,004,000 (2019: 932,249,000).
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27.  Credit risk {continued)

27.8 Cash and balances with central banks - gross exposures and loss allowances

The table betow presénts the aggregate changes in gross carrying values and {oss allowances for balances with central banks (excluding

cash):
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
GBP 000 GBP '000 GBP ‘000 GBP '000
Gross carrying value as at 1 January 2019 242332 - - C 242332
financial assets derecognised during the period other than write-offs (6,679,817} - - (6,679, 817)
New financial assets originated or purchased 7,071,511 - - 7,071,511
. Gross carrying value as at 3t December 2019 . 634,026 - - 634,026
Financial assets derecognised during the period other than write-offs {7.897,588) - - (7,897,588)
New financial assets criginated or purchased 8,054,895 - - 8,054,895
Gross carrying vatue as at 31 December 2020 791,333 - - 791,333
Loss allowance as at 1 January 2019 - - - -
Movemenis with P&L impact 1. - - 1
Loss allowance as at 3t December 2019 1 - - 1
Movements with P&L impact (1) - - {1)
Loss allowance as at 31 December 2020 - - - -
Net carrying value as at 31 December 2019 634,025 - - 634,025
Net carrying value as at 31 December 2020 791,333 - - 791333
There were no purchased credit impaired balances during the reporting period, nor were the terms 6f any contracts modifiec. In
addition, no amounts were written off in the peridd. '
27,9 Due from other banks- gross exposures and loss allowarnces
" The table below presents the aggregate changes in gross carrying values and loss altowances for due from-other banks:
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
- GBP ‘000 GBP ‘000 GBP ‘000 GBP '000
Gross carrying value as at 1 January 2019 88,518 - - 88518
Financial assets derecognised during the period other than write-off {88518) - - (88,518)
New financial assets originated or purchased 54,313 - - 54,313
Gross carrying value as at 31 December 2019 54,313 - - 54313
Financial assets derecognised during the period other than write-off {54,313) - - {54,313)
New financial assets originated or purchased . 107,297 - - 107,297
Gross carrying value as at 31 December 2020 167,297 - - 167,297
Loss allowance as at 1 January 2019 2 - - 2
Financial assets derecognised during the period other than write-offs (2) - - {2)
New financial assets originated or purchased 1 - - 1
Loss altowance as at 31 December 2019 1 - - 1
Financial assets derecognised during the period ather than write-offs (1) - - (1)
New financial assets originated or purchased - - - -
Loss allowance as at 31 December 2020 - - - -
Net carrying value as at 3t December 2019 54,312 - - 54312
Net carrying value as at 31 December 2020 107,297 - - 167,297

There were no purchased credit impaired balances during the reporting period, nor were the terms of any contracts modified. tn addition,

ne amounts were written off in the period.
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27.  Credit risk {continued)

27.10 Investment Securities — gross exposures and toss allowances

The table below presents the aggregate changes i gross carrying values and loss allowances for Investment securities held at FVOCI:

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

GBP 000  GBP ‘000 GBP ‘000 GBP ‘000

Gross carrying value as at 1 January 2019 1,012,759 - - 1,012,759
Financial assets derecognised during the period other than write-offs (848,738} - - (848,738)
New financial assets originated or purchased 771,995 - - 771,995
Changes in fair value (4,998) - - {2.998)
Changes in interest accrual 1232 - - o1
FX and other movements 47 - - 457
Gross carrying value as at 31 December 2019 : 932,297 - - 932,297
Financial assets derecognised during the period other than write-offs (1,347,499} - - (1,347,499)
New financial assets originated or purchased 1,159,313- - - 1,159,313
Changes in fair value 5,995 - - 5,995
Changes in interest accrual (2,679} - - (2,479}
FX and other movements . 2,415 - - 2415
Gross carrying value as at 31 December 2020 750,042 - - " 750,062
Loss allowance as of 1 January 2019 38 - - 38
Movements with P&I. impaci - New financial assets originated' or purchased - 10 - - 10
Loss allowance as at 31 December 2019 : o 48 - - 48
Movements with P&L impact - New financial assets originated of purchased (10) - - (10)
Loss allowance as at 31 December 2020 38 - - 38
Net carrying value as at 31 December 2019 932,249 - - 932,249
750,004 - - 750,004

Net carrying value as at 31 December 2020

There were no purchased credit impatred balances during the reporting period, and no terms of contracts were madified. ia addition, no

amounts were written-off in the period.
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27.  Credit risk (continued)

27.17 Loans and Advances to customers — gross exposures and loss atlowances

Loans and advances to customers comprise the following;

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

GBP ‘000 GBP *000

(i) Mortgage loans Gross 1,437,360 1,127,460
ECL ) (1,473) (1574)

(ii) Other and lombard loans Gross 742527 658,862
, ECL (114) {204}

Total loans and advances to customers . ‘ 2,178,300 . 1,784,544

(I} Mortgage loans - gross exposures and loss allowances

The table below presents the aggregate changes in gross carrying values and loss allowances for mortgage loans:

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
GBP 000 GBP 000 GBP ‘009 GBP ‘000

Gross carrying value as of 1 fanuary 2019 1,026,136 51,718 37,140 1,104,994
Transfer (from) Stage 1 to other stages ' {48351) 40,392 7959 -
Transfer (from} Stage 2 to other stages 34,555 (52,294} 17,739 -
Financial assets derecognised during the period {66,782) (7,306) (2,243) (76,331}
Reclassified from other and lombard loans dufi'ng the period 83,674 794 240 84,708
New financial assets originated 193,993 - - 193,992
Change in exposure on existing loans L {186,766) 26,273 o (19,419) (179,904)
Gross carrying value as at 31 December 2019 1,036,459 49,577 L W42 1,127,460
Transfer {from) Stage 1 to othar stages ' (63,062} 44,037 19,025 -
Transfer (from) Stage 2 to other stages 8,428 (26,489) 16,061 -
Transfer (from) Stage 3 to cther stages - 8,474 (8,474) -
Financial assets derecoghised during the period {221,001) (13,453) (27,611) (262,065}
Reclassified from other and lombard loans during the period 10,130 489 20 10,639
New financial assets originated 555,560 - < 555,560
Change in exposure on existing loans ) 5,842 110 - {186) 5,766
Gross carrying value as at 31 December 2020 1,332,356 64,745 ' 40,259 1,437,360
Loss allowance as at 1 )January 2019 60 24 440 524
Transfer (from} Stage 1to other stages {137) 30 107 -
Transfer {from} Stage 2 to other stages 1 (200) 1499 -
Financial assets derecognised during the period (7} 2} N (15)
Reclassified from other and lombard loans during the period 36 24 59 119
New financial assets originated 27 - - 27
Change in value on existing loans . 164 161 L 595 921
Loss allowance as at 31 December 2019 T 144 37 1,393 1574
Transfer (from) Stage 110 other stages (159} 10 149 -
Transfer (from) Stage 2 10 other stages 13 (14) 1 -
Transfer (from) Stage 3 10 other stages - 8 (8) -
Financial assets derecognised during the period - (20} (29) (301) (350}
Reclassified from / (to) other and lombard loans during the period ? - & 6
New financial assets originated 202 - y 202
Change in value on existing loans 8 4 29 41
Loss allowance as at 31 December 2020 190 16 1,267 1,473

There were no purchased credit impaired balances during the reporting period, and no terms of contracts were medified. In addition,
amounts totalling GBP 62,000 (2019; GBP 1,300,000) were written-off in the period.

»
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27.  Credit risk (continued)

{ii} Other and lombard loans - gross exposures and loss allowances

The table betow presents the aggregate changes in gross carrying values and ioss allowances for other and lombard loans:

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
: GBP ‘000 GBP ‘000 GBP 000 GBP ‘000
Gross carryihg value as of 1January 2019 541,100 7,683 11,464 560,247
Transfer (from) Stage 1 to other stages (10,212) 9,432 780 -
Transfer (from) Stage 2 to other stages 12,301 (12,301) - -
Financial assets derecognised during the period (89,516) {127) {1,784) (91,427}
Reclassified from / {to) mortgage loans during the period (83,674) {794) {240) (84,708}
New financial assets originated 47,540 - - 47,540
Change in exposure on existing loans 21 442 . 19,837 (7,069) 227210
Gross carrying value as at 31 December 2019 631,981 ’ 23,730 3,151 658,862
Transfer (from) Stage 110 other stages (4,741) 3,150 1591 -
Transfer (from) Stage 2 to other stages 713 (113} - -
Transfer (from) Stage 3 to other stages - 220 (220) -
Financial assets derecognised during the period {121,006) (10,195} (2,491) {133,692)
Reclassified to mortgage loans during the period (10,130) (489) (20) (10,639)
New financial assets originated . 196,135 . - - 196,135
Change in exposure on existing loans ] 31,697 . 508 (344) 31,861
Gross carrying value as at 31 December 2020 724,649 ©oosm ' 1,667 742,527
Loss allowance as of 1 January 2019 97 3 1,237 1,337
Transfer from Stage 1to other stages ) : (1} 1 - -
Financial assets derecognised during the period . (18} (1) (1,237} (1,256}
Reclassified to mortgage loans during the period ) (36} (24) {(59) : (119}
New financial assets originated 26 o - 31
Change in value on existing loans . ‘ 131 21 59 211
Loss allowance as at 31 December 2019 g 202 ’ 2 - 204
Transfer from Stage 1 to other stages - . (90} 40 50 : -
Financial assets derecognised during the period : {154} Co(23) - : (177)
Reclassified to mortgage loans during the period ‘ {1 . (4) - {5)
New financial assets originated . 95 - - 95
Change in value on existing toans . : . {2) {2).. .- oo (4)
Loss allowance as at 2t December 2020 ' 50 oz 50 113
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28, Market risk : ———
The Company engages in the trading of securities, derivatives, foreign exchange and money market paper on behalf of its clients. The

Company does not engage in proprietary trading in securities. The Company maintains small proprietary positions in foreign exchange

instruments.

The Company separates exposures to market risk into either trading or non-trading portfolios. Both securities and foreign exchange
exposures are limited by nominal overnight and Value at Risk {'VaR’) limits. Foreign exchange is also subject to intraday limits, as well as
to daily and monthly stop loss monitoring. Adherence to all limits is monitored independently of Treasury department who are
responsible for managing market risk. Due to the nature of the Company’s business and the absence of any meaningful proprietary
trading activities, the market risk resulting from trading positions is limited compared to overall market risk.

281 Market risk measurement methodology

Market risk exposure is measured in several ways, namely; nominal and VaR exposure, gap reports, sensitivity to risk factors and stress
tests. VaR is not used for regulatory reporting of risks and is used internally only, for control and management purposes of FX exposure
and credit risk exposure in the Treasury investment portfolio, The Company applies limits to all market risks. Limits include nominal, ’ I
stop loss, rating quality and concentration types, depending upon the nature of the market risk concered. 1n addition, positions are :
also measured in the event of extreme market movements (stress testing). The major measurement techniques used to measure and ,
control market risk, are outlined below.

28.1.1 Value at risk

VaR measures the poteniial loss impact on open risk positions, under normal market conditions, VaR is calculated using statistically
expected changes in market parameters for a given holding period at a specified level of probability. The internal model is based on a
variancefco-variance approach and uses a 99% one-tailed confidence level. The mode! assumes a 10-day holding period for purposes of
group internal risk reporting, with a 201-day observation period for market variables. The VaR model is adjusted on an ongoing basis in
response to developments in the financial markets and to changes in our risk management needs. Risk parameters based on the VaR
methodology are calculated daily. The use of this approach does not prevent losses cutside of these limits in the event of more
significant market movements. '

28.1.2 IRRBB Economic value of equity, interest income sensitivity and maturity gap metrics

The Economic Value of Equity {(EVE) sensitivity metric refers to risks on the Banks' capital, arising from adverse movements in interest
rates that affect the Bank's balance sheet. Changes in interest rates affect the underlying value of the Bank’s assets, liabilities and ofi-
balance sheet items and hence its economic value. The Net Interest Income (N1} sensitivity metric refers to risks on the Banks' earnings,
arising from adverse movements in interest rates that affect the Bank’s banking book positions. Changes in interest rates affect the
Bank's earnings by altering interest rate-sensitive income and expenses, affecting its net interest income. These two metrics together
with the Maturity Gap metric that meastires the Bank’s IR mismatch are the key measures monitoring interest rate risk.

The Company has implemented an interest rate risk framework in accordance to its business mode! and its interest rate risk exposure,
where stress testing is used as the primary technique to measure IRRBB. The stress tests used include the regulatory +/-200bp parallel
moves and other scenarios as appropriate to ensure the key interest rate risks in the Banking Book are captured, The impact of IRRBB is
monitored on a monthly basis. The table below shows the IRRBB EVE sensitivity to a parallel upward and downward move of 200bps in
interest rates.

Through the economic value of equity measure, the Bank computes a change in the net present value of assets, liabilities and off-
balance sheet items, subject to specific interest rate stress scenarios. The economic value of equity sensitivity reflects changes in value
over the remaining life of assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet items (i.¢. until all positions have run off) and including all pricing
components {eg. margin payments).

Non-maturing products are modelled using replicating portfolios, considering behavigural characteristics. Non-maturity products
assumptions are built around the following three analysis steps:

i) Correlation 10 market rates — magnitude of deposits rate shifts, in response to market rates changes

i} Volume stability - estimate of the stability of cutstanding volume, and

iit) Volume decay - rate at which balances are being reduced from the account outstanding volume

Based on the above steps, non-maturing products are replicated, so that they can be assigned a synthetic maturity and transformed into
fixed-income instruments. The synthetic maturity is based on parameters specific to EFGIUK, considering a segmeniation into retail and
wholesale categories. Products placed by an individual person fall in the retail category, while sole proprietorships or partnerships are
captured in the wholesale category.
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28. Market risk (continued)

The Bank cansiders embedded options in banking products, such as loans and deposits. Concerning embedded options in loans, floor
options {for example the cost of funding will never go below zero) are captured and optional cash flows are generated using a
deterministic model.

Stress scenario outcomes are highly affected by optional elements embedded in banking products, especially on loans {floors) and other
financial products (inciuding behavioural options specific to EFGIUK). The stress scenarios activate optional etements, when shocked
rates fall in negative territory. Consequently, the economic value of equity sensitivity is not symmetric between the upward and
downward stress scenarios, heightening the economic value of equity in case of a parallet down stress scenario.

IRRBS - Economic value of equity (GBP)
31 December 202¢ 31 December 2019

GBP "C00 . GBP ‘000

Impact impact

IRRBB moves 200bps down 85,404 47,849
IRREB moves 200bps up (2977} (5,662)

28.1.3 Stress tests

The sk calculations explained above are complemented by a suite of stress tests, that identify the potential impact of extreme market
scenarios on portfolio vatues. These stress tests simulate both exceptional movements in prices or rates and drastic deteriorations in
market correlations. In addition to neminat limits and stop losses, they are the primary toots used for internal market risk management.

282 Market risk hedging strategies

The Company is exposed to financial risks arising fram many aspects of its business. The Company implements different risk
management strategies to eliminate or reduce market risk expostires. Risks being hedged through derivative financial instruments are
typically changes in interest rates and foreign currency rates or effects of other risks. The Company implements fair value and cash flow
hedging strategies.

2821 Fair value hedging strategies .

The risk being hedged in a fair value hedging strategy is a change in the fair value of an asset or liability that is attributable to a
particular risk and couid affect P&L or the economic value of equity. Changes in fair value might arise through changes in interest rates,
foreign exchange rates or other attributes. The Company implements fair value hedges of individual hedged items (micre fair value
hedging).

2822 Cash flow hedging strategies

The risk being hedged in a cash flow hedging strategy is the exposure to variability in cash flows that is attributable to a particular risk
associated with a recognised asset or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction and could affect P&L or the economic vatue of
equity. Future cash flows might relate to existing assets and liabilities, such as future interest payments or receipts on floating rate debt
Future cash flows can also relate to forecast revenues or costs deriving from a foreign currency exposure. Velatility in future cash flows
might result from changes in interest rates or exchange rates.

283 Market risk measurement
VaR Summary

The fottowing table presents the VaR (10-d / 99%) for currency risk considering atl positions at Balance Sheet level:

VaR by risk type At 31 December 12 manths to 31 December
Average High Low
GBP '000 GBP ‘000 GBP ‘000 GBP ‘000
VAR on Currency risk - 31 December 2020 27 31 193 4
VAR on Currency risk — 31 December 2019 59 42 709 &

The Company carries out foreign currency operations both for its clients, and for its own account. Foreign exchange risk arises from
future commercial transactions, recognised assets and liabilities and net investments, and trading activities in foreign operations. From
time to time, the Company may enter into currency hedging arrangements to reduce the effects of exchange rate fluctuations on its
income.
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28. Market risk {continued)

28.3 Market risk measurement {continued)

The following table summarises the repricing gap of EFGIUKs financial instruments based on the undiscounted cashflows,

categorised by the earlier of contractual repricing or maturity dates:

Upto3 ' 3-12 i-5 Over 5 Non-interest
months months years years bearing Total

GBP ‘000 GBP ‘000 GBP ‘000 GBP ‘000 GBP™ 000 GBP '000
As at 31 December 2020
Assets
Cash and balances with central banks 791,131 - - - 202 791,333
Due from other banks 104,212 - - - 3,085 107,297
Derivative financial instruments 8,656 548 - - 196 9,400
financial assets at FYOCI 210,325 212,604 294,083 29,954 3,038 750,004
Loans and advances to customers 2,119,993 1815 41,547 11,190 3,955 2,178,300
Investrment in subsidiary - - - - 10,045 10,045
Other assels - - ‘ - - 53,679 53,679
Total financial assets 3234317 214,767 335,630 {1,144 74,200 3,900,058
Liabilities
Due to other banks 927421 - - - 168 527,589
Due to customers 2528192 40,688 - - 446,385 3,015,265
Derivative financial instruments 258N mn - - 11,361 37,493
Other Habilities 710 2,752 3480 161 57271 B4 374
Subordinated loans - - 66,631 - 290 66,921
Total financial liabilities 3,082,144 43,751 7011 161 515,475 3,711,642
On-Batance Sheet interest repricing gap 152,173 171,016 265,519 40,983 (441,275} 188,416
Off-Balance Sheet interest repricing gap (27,956} (43,331} (115,304) {6,977) - (193,568)
As at 31 December 2019
Assets
Cash and balances with central banks 634,025 - - - 634,025
Due from other banks 54,312 - - - 54,312
Derivative financial instruments 16,953 a1 - 666 18,530
Financial assets at FvOCI 307,000 142,272 482 977 - - 932,249
Loans and agvances to customers 183,462 232677 1,351,277 17,127 - 1,784,543
Investment in subsidiary - - - 10,000 10,000
Other assets - - - - 51,919 51,919
Total financial assets 1,195,752 375,860 1,834,254 17,127 62,585 3,485578
Liabitities
Due 1o other banks 551,727 227 - - 551,954
Due 1o customers 2,537,183 61,7563 - - 2,598,926
Derivative financial instruments 20,259 68 - 2,058 22,385
Other liabilities - - - 28,967 28,967
Subordinated loans - - - 66,631 287 66,918
Total financial tiabilities 3,199,169 52,038 - 56,631 31,312 3,269,150
On-Balance Sheet interest repricing gap (1,913,417} 313,822 1,834,254 (49,504) 31,273 216,428
Off-Balance Sheet interest repricing gap (7,158} (48,090} {73907 {98) - {129,253)
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29.  Liguidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Company is unable to meet its payment obligaticns associated with its financial liabitities when they fall
due, and to replace funds when they are withdrawn. The Company manages its liguidity risk in such a way as 10 ensure that enough
liquidity is available to meet its commitments to customers, both in demand for leans and repayments of deposits, and to satisfy its own
cash flow needs. The Company also ensures that it seeks to comply with all regulatory liquidity requirements. As part of the overali EFGI
Group Treasury management process, other banks within the EFGI Group may place deposits, representing their surplus liquidity, with the
Company. These deposits are then typically placed by the Company in short-term money market assats.

291 Liguidity risk management process

The Company attempts to avoid concentrations of its funding facilities. ¥ observes its current liguidity situation and determines the
pricing of its assets and credit businass. The Company also has a liquidity management pracess in place that includes liquidity
contingancy plans. These contingency measures include liquidation of marketable securities and seeking parent company support.

The Campany seeks to comply with all regulatory requirements, including overnight liquidity limits. In addition, it reports its kquidity
position toits management daily. Stress tests are undertaken monthly. Both the Company's capital and reserves position, and its
conservative approach to tenor when funding customer loans, assist in reducing the Company's exposure to liquidity risk,

The Company's liquidity risk management process is carried out by Treasury and monitored by the Asset and Liability Committee. it

includes:

- day-to~-day funding managed by monitoring future cash flows to ensure that requirements can be met. This includes replenishment as
they mature or are borrowed by customers of funds;

- mainiaining a portfolio of highly marketable assets that can easily be fiquidated as protection against any unforeseen interruption to
cash flow;

~ monitoring Balance Sheet liquidity ratios against internal and regulatory requirements; and,

- managing the concentration and profile of debt maturities.

Monitoring and reporting take the form of cash flow measurement and projections for the next day, _week and month respectively, as
these are key periods for liquidity management. The starting point for those projections is an analysis of the contractual maturity of the
financial liabilities, and the expected collection date of the financial assets.

Under the oversight of ALCO, Treasury also monitors unmatched medium-term assets and the usage of overdraft facilities. Sources of
liquidity are regularly reviewed by Treasury with the aim of maintaining diversification by currency, geography, provider, productand
. term.

292 Concentration risk

The overall levet of liquidity exposure and corresponding limits are tightly monitored by means of specific risk metrics approved by the
Board of Directors and in lire with the Company's overall committed level of risk appetite.

The Company’s concentration risks are managed through the following mechanisms:

- monitering of comptiance with ALM, funding concentration and risk appetite limits assigned;

- informing approval bodies when ALM, concentration and risk appetite Limits are exceeded; and

~ proposing risk mitigation measures for ALM, conceatration and risk appetite thresholds.

29.3 Finandial liabilities cash flows
The table below analyses the Company's financial liabilities by remaining contractual maturities, at the Balance Sheet date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

For more detailed information on off-Balance Sheet exposures by maturity, refer to note 28.
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29, Liquidity risk {continued)

29.3 Financial tiabilities cash flows (continued)

Uptoi 1-3 3-12 -5 Over S
month months months years years Total
GBP ‘000 GBP ‘000 GBP 000 GBP '000 GBP ‘000 GBP ‘000

31 December 2020
Liabilities
Due to other banks 158,644 222,116 - 146,529 - 527,589
Due to customers 2,639,748 288,603 86,914 - - 3,015,265
Subordinated loans - . 5394 72324 . 77.718
Derivative financial instruments 8,694 12,985 2,146 8,662 6 37493
Other liabilities N2 21134 5167 7,567 285 64,374
Total financtal liabilities 2,838,307 550,138 98,621 235,082 29 3722439
31 December 2019
Liabilities
Due to other banks 167,919 383,808 227 - - 551,954
Due to customers 2,167,525 369,658 61,743 - - 2,598,926
Subordinated loans - - 287 - 66,631 66,918
Derivative financial instruments 15,810 6,507 68 - - 22,385
QOther liabilities 28,967 - . - - 28,967
Total financial liabilities T 2,380,221 62,325 - 66,631 3,269,150

30. Key management compensation

759,973

Accounting Policy

The Company's key management persannel comprise the members of the Executive Committee and the Board's non-executive Directors.
The following amounts have been included in respect of these individuals:

31 December 2020

31 December 2019

GBP Gep
Aggregaie amounts paid or treated as paid to key
management in respect of qualifying services
Short-term employment benefits 4636 5,468
Share-based payments 496 527
Pension contributions 466 480
Total 5598 6,475

The highest paid member of key management is equal to the disclosure for the highest paid director in Note 7.

3. Contingent liabilities

The Company is involved in various legat and arbitration proceedings in the normal course of its business operations. The Company
establishes provisions (see Note 21) for current and threatened pending legal proceedings if management is of the opinion that the
Company is more likely than not to face payments or losses and if the amount of such payments or tosses can be reliably estimated.
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32. Employee equity incentive plans

Accounting Policy

;The Company benefits from the EFGI Employee Equity Incentive Plan (the 'Plan’). Equity settled schemes are measured at fair value at the
date of grant, which is then recognised in the Income Statement over the period from grant to the vesting date of the shares. The number
'of share awards expected to vest considers the likelihood that performance and services conditions included in the terms of the award
fwill be met. The charge is adjusied at each balance sheet date 10 reflect the actual number of forfeitures, cancellations and leavers
7during the year, The movement in cumulative charges since the previous balance sheet is recognised in the Income Statement, with a
'corresponding entry in equity.

The total expense related to the Plan in the Income Statement was GBP 4,430,000 (2019: GBP 4,155,000).

| The value of the share-based awards was determined using a model which considers the present value of the expected dividends during
the period between the grant date and the earliest exercise date. The significant inputs into the model in 2020 were the arithmetic
Faverage share price {closing] of the five consecutive business days following the earnings announcement, which was CHF 5.47 (2019: CHF
16.65) and the discount determined by management, which was 20% {2019: 20%) based on the expected life of the restricted stock units.

Movements in share awards;

The number of share-based awards outstanding as at 31 December was as follows;

2020 2019

Number Number

QOutstanding at start of the year 2843852 2,766,305
Granted 1,199,501 1,271,654
Exercised (951,609) (1,190,723)
Cancelled - -
Forfeited o _ {99.791) (3.384)

" Outstanding at the end of the year . 2,991,953 2,843.852
Weighted average remaining contractual life of awards outstanding in years ' 19 20
Exercisable at the end of the year 639,426 739,634

The weighted average market price at the date of exercise was CHF 5.85 {2019: CHF 6.91). The range of exercise prices for shares
exercised during thé year was GBP 358 to GBP 6.02 (2019: GBP 4,79 10 11.34). ’
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33, Related party transactions

Accounting Policy

basis.

Related parties include associates, fellow subsidiaries, Directors, their close families, companies owned or controlled by them and
icompanies whose financiat and operating policies they can influence. Transactions of a similar nature are disclosed on an aggregate

2020

Key management
Fellow personnel & other
Subsidiaries related parties

GBP ‘000
As at 31 December
Assets
Dye from other banks . 48,7119
Loans and advances to customers -
Derivatives 5356
Other assets 34,279
Liahilities
Due to other banks 517,637
Oue to customer 35,054
Derivatives 28,628
Subordinated loans 66,921
Other liabilities 1,010
Year ended 31 December
Interest income 1,055
Interest expense (14538)
Net fee and commission income 14,308
Net other income (8,389)
Operating expenses (12.479)

G8P '000

891

98

59

945
27

2m9
Key management
Fellow personnel & other

Subsidiaries

GBP ‘000

5204
1128
30,499

541,281
1,030
66,918
42,348

329
{1,951
7

related parties

GBP "000

392

A number of banking transactions are entered with related parties. These include loans, deposits, derivative transactions and provision of
services. The amounts due from other banks reflect cash deposits, which like other third-party amounts ¢lassified as due from other
hanks are unsecured. Key management personne! comprise Directors, key members of the management of the Cormpanies and of its
parent, as well as closely linked parties. There was GBP 61,000 of credit limits available to key management personnel and other related
parties at the end of the year (2019 GBP 1,061,000). No provisions have been recognised in respect of loans given to related parties {2019:

nil).

34, Off-Balance Sheet items

The following table summarises the Company's Off-Balance Sheet items by maturity:

Not Later than 1 year 1-5 years QOver 5 years Total
) GBP 000 G8P ‘000 GBP 000 GBP 000
31 Decernber 2020
Guarantees issued in favour of third parties 12,096 1,645 - 13,741
Guaraniees issued in favour of group companies 128,408 - - 128,408
Irrevocable commitments 52,524 133,193 6,977 192,694
Total 193,028 134,838 6,977 334,843
31 December 2019
Guarantees issued in favour of third parties 18,551 1,366 - 19,97
Guarantees issued in favour of group companies 107,026 - - 107,026
Irrevocable commitments 38123 93,193 98 131,414
Total " 163,700 34,559 98 258,357

The financial guarantees maturities are based on the earliest contractual maturity date. The irrevocable commitments maturities are

based on the dates on which loan commitments made to customers will cease to exist,
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